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Director-General’s foreword 
During the past year the Department 
of Local Government, Community 
Recovery and Resilience has 
continued to support the government's 
plan to grow a four pillar economy 
and to assist Queensland’s 77 local 
governments in contributing to the 
State’s economic growth and the social 
cohesion within their communities. We 
are making significant progress, state-
wide and locally, but we are determined
to do more. 

We have overseen the implementation of 
the Queensland 2013 Flood Recovery Plan 
and the Severe Tropical Cyclone Ita 
Recovery Plan. We have also driven the 
development and implementation of the 
Queensland Strategy for Disaster 
Resilience to make Queensland the most 
disaster resilient state in Australia, making 
communities better prepared for and more 
resilient to the impacts of natural 
disasters. 

We led the implementation of key 
resilience projects in partnership with 
councils and other agencies. These 
projects include major flood levees in 
Roma and St George, a flood mitigation 
project in Toowoomba and the Get Ready 
Queensland campaign jointly led with the 
previous Department of Community 
Safety. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The department’s ongoing role in the 
administration of local government 
legislation has seen the review of the 
Local Government Electoral Act 2011. 
Proposed amendments will simplify the 
local government election process and 
ensure greater consistency with state 
legislation.  

In January 2014 the department finalised 
the government's de-amalgamation election   
commitment with four new councils - Noosa,  
Mareeba, Livingstone and Douglas - created 
through a well-managed de-amalgamation 
process and timely review of related 
legislation. To build councils’ capacity and  
capability, targeted training programs and 
workshops have been held, and a range of
online guidelines and resources have been 
published. 

Queensland’s Indigenous communities 
have benefited from targeted support 
including $1.5 million for the Business 
Incentive Scheme, the $1.5 million Service 
Delivery Fund and $3.6 million towards 
the Major Infrastructure Program.  

We have continued to work 
collaboratively with the Local Government 
Association of Queensland and other 
agencies to support smaller and remote 
councils. I am confident that much has 
been achieved through creative 
partnerships and collaborative endeavours. 

I would like to thank the department’s 
staff, and local government stakeholders 
for their valuable contributions over the 
past year. Their dedication and hard work 
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has underpinned the Government’s 
commitment to empowering and 
promoting the State’s 77 local 
governments.  

Looking ahead, we will continue to 
deliver on the government's strong
plan for the future by assisting councils 
to be sustainable, efficient, responsible, 
accountable and responsible to local
needs, while providing support to

create resilient local communities. Our
aim is that the initiatives and projects we
undertake in coming months and the
continued support and cooperation from
our local government partners will make
that plan a reality. 

Craig Evans AM 
Director-General 
Department of Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience 
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About the department 
With a vision for empowered 
councils with the capacity to build 
resilient local communities, the 
Department of Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience 
ensures that local governments are 
able to make effective decisions that 
bring increased economic prosperity 
and social cohesion to their 
communities. Working with other 
agencies and with local government 
partners, the department wants all 
local governments to have the 
necessary autonomy, authority, 
capacity and resilience to deliver the 
best outcomes for their community. 

Role and functions 
Local government plays an important role 
in community lifestyle and development. 
At the centre of local decision-making, 
local governments deliver the Queensland 
Government’s priorities through the 
services, resources and activities they 
provide for their diverse communities. 
The work of the department in providing 
legislative oversight, collaboration, 
general advice and support is integral to 
the role of local governments.  

The department is responsible for the 
administration of local government 
legislation which outlines the role and 
responsibility of councillors and enhances 
the authority and autonomy of 
Queensland’s 77 local governments. The 
department also has responsibility for 
coordinating programs to build 

Queensland communities’ preparedness for 
and resilience to natural disasters.  

Departmental staff are located in 
Brisbane’s CBD and in regional offices in 
Cairns, Townsville, Rockhampton, 
Maryborough, Toowoomba and 
Maroochydore. Our staff are committed to 
the public sector values - encouraged to 
take risks, to turn ideas into action and to 
contribute to the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the organisation. They are 
empowered to undertake professional 
development, to gain new skills and 
expertise and to put customers first 
through a sound understanding of the 
goals and aspirations of communities and 
the councils that serve them.  

Legislation 

Legislation administered by 
the department includes:  

 Local Government Act 2009 

 Local Government Electoral Act 2011 

 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
Communities (Justice, Land and Other 
Matters) Act 1984 (Part 9, Div 2, and 
Part 10) 

 City of Brisbane Act 2010 

Partners in Government 
Agreement 

The department oversees the operation of 
the Partners in Government Agreement 
(the Agreement) with the Local 
Government Association of Queensland 
(LGAQ). The Agreement was signed in 
2012 and signalled the beginning of a new 
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era of revitalised relationships between 
local and state government. 

The Agreement provides a clear set of 
principles to guide the relationship 
between both levels of government 
including those of mutual respect and 
cooperation. It also clearly articulates a 
commitment from the State Government 
to proper and meaningful consultation.  

Renewal program 

The department’s renewal program 
continues to focus on areas where we can 
create efficiency, reduce waste and 
improve quality and timeliness across the 
service areas. To progress renewal 
initiatives in 2013-14 the department has: 

 undertaken a review of capacity 
building and training, instigating new 
practices in program development and 
beginning the formal contestability 
review process 

 replaced the out-dated grants 
management system with a more 
efficient and modern system  

 supported a project being undertaken 
by Queensland Treasury Corporation in 
partnership with seven councils to 
develop and trial asset management 
and depreciation methodologies - the 
goal being that councils will be more 
informed about efficient and effective 
asset management and depreciation 
options  

 partnered with GIVIT - an online 
donation matching service - in a trial 
program to match donations to 
community needs during the recovery 
phase of disaster events 

 improved internal communication and 
external correspondence processes. 

Service areas 
The department has two service areas, 
Local Government and Community 
Recovery and Resilience. The service areas 
design, develop and implement budgeted 
programs and initiatives to deliver on 
state priorities and to achieve strategic 
objectives.   

Local Government 

The Local Government service area 
supports and empowers councils across 
the State by: 

 providing direct support to councils 
through a network of regional offices 
across Queensland  

 administering the councillor conduct 
complaints management and referral 
process in accordance with legislation 

 administering funding for essential 
infrastructure under the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies 
Program 

 providing financial management 
support and advice 

 developing and delivering targeted and 
high quality capacity building 
resources, training and solutions for 
councils to enable strong and 
responsive local government 

 implementing an internal capacity 
building model for staff to improve and 
maintain understanding of local 
government.  

Community Recovery and 
Resilience 

The service area coordinates and manages 
community recovery initiatives and 
undertakes activities to enhance and build 
resilience to future natural disasters by:  
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 promoting community resilience based 
on an all hazards approach in 
collaboration with other state agencies 
closely involved in natural disaster 
recovery and resilience initiatives  

 implementing community preparedness 
and disaster resilience initiatives such 
as the Get Ready Queensland program 

 continuing to implement the 2013 
Queensland Flood Recovery Plan, the 
Severe Tropical Cyclone Ita Recovery 
Plan and the Queensland Strategy for 
Disaster Resilience 

 examining the feasibility of levees and 
dams, natural safeguards and 
community infrastructure for future 
disaster resilience  

 ensuring that recovery actions are 
focussed on community outcomes, and 
that services are integrated and 
efficient 

 using a coordinated cross government 
approach, working in partnership with 
communities at the grass roots level to 
identify simple, practical and cost-
effective solutions to minimise the 
impact of future natural disasters. 

Achievements in 
2013-14 

Legislation and policy framework 

The department provides a legislative and 
policy framework to empower and support 
the vital role of councils and in 2013–14 
the department: 

 prepared the Local Government 
Legislation Amendment Regulation 
(No.4) 2013 which provided the four 
new local governments with the 

flexibility to manage their financial 
responsibilities from 1 January 2014 

 conducted the review of the Local 
Government Electoral Act 2011 by 
releasing a Discussion Paper for public 
consultation in November 2013 

 introduced into Parliament, reforms to 
the Local Government Electoral Act 
2011 to further empower local 
governments by giving them the option 
of running their own local government 
elections and by aligning local and 
state government electoral 
arrangements, where appropriate 

 implemented the government’s red tape 
reduction framework reducing the 
regulatory burden on local 
governments  

 introduced new National Competition 
Policy Guidelines for Conducting 
Reviews on Anti-Competitive 
Provisions in Local Laws – simplifying 
the process of conducting public 
interest tests on anti-competitive 
provisions in local laws.
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Funding and grants programs 

To assist councils in undertaking 
infrastructure projects and to support 
other community endeavours the 
department:  

 managed and implemented the Local 
Government Grants and Subsidies 
Program and committed $15.1 million 
to 49 councils for 88 local government 
infrastructure projects 

 developed and implemented the $1.5 
million Business Incentive Scheme and 
the $1.5 million Service Delivery Fund 
to assist Indigenous councils 

 allocated $2 million under the 
GraffitiSTOP program to assist councils 
with graffiti management 

 provided grant funding of $674,000 to 
eight councils and two regional 
organisations of councils to undertake 
projects to improve their financial 
management and build their financial 
sustainability 

 provided funding to 131 grant 
recipients under the Show Societies 
Grants Program with a total program 
funding allocation of $2 million 

 allocated $13.8 million for 45 flood 
related projects in 29 councils as 
part of a larger flood mitigation 
program including Burnett River 
Stabilisation and the Burdekin 
Cyclone Shelter. 

Capacity building and 
governance 

During the past year the department has 
promoted the role and responsibilities of 
councillors and encouraged good 
governance practices through targeted 
capacity building programs. It has: 

 developed and facilitated delivery of a 
suite of capacity building programs to 
promote a greater understanding of 
local government legislation 

 published a range of online resources 
to expand councils’ access to 
guidelines and resources that support 
accountability and compliance 

 co-delivered, with the LGAQ, the 
Diploma of Local Government 
Administration program and sponsored 
30 staff from various councils to 
undertake the program 

 provided targeted support for small 
rural, remote and Indigenous councils 
in relation to financial management 
and good governance 

 managed more than 80 complaints 
about councillor conduct through a 
robust, timely and efficient process 
including referrals to the Crime and 
Corruption Commission, the Local 
Government Remuneration and 
Discipline Tribunal and Regional 
Conduct Review Panels 

 provided secretariat support to the 
independent Local Government 
Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal 
and the Regional Conduct Review 
Panels. 

Collaborative initiatives 

In August 2013, the department 
conducted the first Regional Round Table 
meeting in Townsville and commenced 
work on implementing initiatives to 
support greater financial sustainability 
and improved management for local 
government including:  

 reconvening the Finance Officers 
Network for councils in the Northern 
Region to promote networking and the 
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sharing of best-practice ideas and 
processes 

 encouraging networking between water 
and wastewater staff in Indigenous 
communities as a means of improving 
service standards, promoting the choice 
of appropriate technology and 
introducing water conservation 
measures.  

Infrastructure projects in 
Indigenous councils 

The department continued to upgrade 
environmental health infrastructure in 
Indigenous communities through the 
Indigenous State Infrastructure Program. 
Over $16 million was spent on a range of 
infrastructure projects including: 

 construction of a 24 lot subdivision, a 
new water reservoir, and water 
infrastructure upgrades in Doomadgee 
Shire Council 

 upgrades to water and wastewater 
infrastructure at Hope Vale, 
Mornington and Yarrabah Shire 
Councils. 

Community recovery and 
resilience 

With a focus on improving community 
recovery and on building greater resilience 
in the face of natural disasters the 
department:  

 led the implementation of key 
resilience projects including major 
flood levees in Roma and St George 
(highlighted in figure 1) 

 delivered $1 million to fund the second 
year of the three year Brisbane River 
Catchment Flood Study 

 assumed administrative responsibility 
for the State/Australian Government 
funded Natural Disaster Resilience 
Program to fund projects that enhance 
the resilience of communities against 
the impact of natural disasters 

 managed the implementation of the 
2013 Queensland Flood Recovery Plan 

 developed and implemented the Severe 
Tropical Cyclone Ita Recovery Plan 

 developed and implemented the 
Queensland Strategy for Disaster 
Resilience to provide strategic direction 
to achieve the State Government's 
vision to make Queensland the most 
disaster resilient state in Australia 

 developed the State Resilience 
Activities Register to guide and 
coordinate the building of disaster 
resilience throughout Queensland 

 monitored the planning and delivery of 
disaster mitigation infrastructure 
projects 

 developed, implemented and managed 
a service agreement with not-for-profit 
organisation GIVIT for a two year trial 
program to provide a mechanism to 
register and match donations with 
community need as a result of disaster 
events  

 delivered jointly with the previous 
Department of Community Safety the 
Get Ready Queensland program to 
build disaster resilience within the 
community under one brand, with a 
strong focus on preparing for extreme 
weather events.  
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Figure 1 Case Study - Roma levee: Building community resilience 

The Roma Levee is an example of the department’s work in building resilience to possible 
future natural disasters. The 5.2 kilometre levee, consisting of earthen wall, raised roadway and 
a concrete wall protection section, offers flood mitigation to 500 homes and businesses in 
Roma. The Levee runs from north of the Roma airport, crosses the Carnarvon Highway to 
traverse the eastern side of the town and follows Bungil Creek, ending above Lovell Street. 

(Levee Construction Team Image reference Constructor – Oswald Bros) 
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Our operating environment 

Local government in 
Queensland 2013-14 
On 1 January 2014, four new shire 
councils of Noosa, Mareeba, Livingstone 
and Douglas commenced operations. This 
followed a lengthy and effective 
de-amalgamation process culminating in 
fresh local government elections for the 
mayors and councillors in those areas on 
9 November 2013. Queensland now has 77 
local governments operating in a dynamic 
and challenging environment (see 
figure 2). 

Growth in Queensland’s resource sector, in 
the travel and tourism industries and in 
the State’s appeal to both new industry 
and retirees has the potential to 
reinvigorate prospects for the State’s 
future growth and economic prosperity. 
The implications of these factors for local 
government are various. Councils need to 
be well managed, financially sound 
entities with the autonomy, capability and 
authority to cater for the needs and 
aspirations of the diverse communities 
they serve. The department will continue 
to provide a legislative framework, 
targeted capacity building programs and 
support for financial management 
assisting councils to deliver services and 
meet community expectations. 

Given the impact of natural disasters such 
as tropical cyclones and floods on local 
government infrastructure and 
community facilities, a key focus for the 
department is coordination and 
implementation of natural disaster 
mitigation and resilience 

projects undertaken in partnership with 
councils. 

Opportunities and 
challenges 
Queensland’s diverse 77 local 
governments face enormous challenges 
because of their size, geography, 
demography, unpredictable seasonal 
conditions and environmental concerns. 

For the department the challenge is to: 

 ensure that all councils have the 
necessary autonomy and authority to 
operate with accountability and 
efficiency to provide effective front line 
services for their communities 

 work with councils to identify 
community infrastructure and 
resilience initiatives that will minimise 
the impact of future disasters in regions 
and communities big and small across 
the State  

 assist councils to develop partnerships 
and collaborative relationships to 
facilitate major projects and grow 
strong and prosperous regions driven 
by cooperation across local 
government boundaries. 

By working closely with all councils— 
urban, large regional, remote and 
Indigenous and with inclusive policies that 
align with The Queensland Plan, the 
department seeks opportunities to: 

 review and update policy and 
legislation to ensure currency and to 
strengthen autonomy, capacity and 
accountability in local government  
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 support and partner with Indigenous 
councils and remote councils with 
small populations to achieve gains for 
the State’s Indigenous communities and 
more economically and geographically 
challenged areas  

 implement a client focussed service 
delivery model creating collaborative 
partnerships between state, federal and 
local governments to deliver services 
and coordinate resilience initiatives 
more efficiently. 

Figure 2 Map of Queensland local government areas as at 30 June 2014 
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Realising outcomes for local government 
and the community 
The department works with other 
Queensland Government 
departments, the Australian 
Government and the State’s 77 
councils to promote and achieve 
government priorities, to deliver on 
its strategic plan and by extension 
to realise the aspirations of diverse 
and changing Queensland 
communities. 

Achieving government 
objectives 
The Queensland Government continues to 
focus on investment in the four pillar 
industries of Tourism, Agriculture, 
Resources and Construction. Other 
objectives emphasise the streamlining of 
government processes, reducing red tape 
and regulation and improving service 
delivery. The government is committed to 
making sure that services are delivered in 
a way that is smarter, simpler and more 
responsive to the needs of Queenslanders 
now and for the future.  

To realise the government’s objectives for 
the community with a focus on the local 
government sector and on community 
recovery and resilience, the department: 

 works with councils, peak local 
government bodies and state and 
commonwealth departments to grow a 
four pillar economy that operates more 
efficiently and with less red tape 

 leads the coordination and 
implementation of resilience initiatives 

 implements projects and initiatives in 
partnership with local governments to 
build infrastructure that enhances 
disaster resilience and minimises the 
impact of future natural disasters  

 identifies simple, practical and cost 
effective solutions to minimise the 
impact of natural disasters on 
Queenslanders and their communities 

 provides a policy and legislative 
framework that enables councils to 
deliver sound decisions and policies, 
efficient front-line services and to 
implement sound financial 
management practices for the benefit 
of their communities  

 supports the Queensland Government’s 
renewal agenda by promoting 
accountability, a more efficient 
bureaucracy and ensuring better value 
for taxpayers’ money 

 delivers innovative and beneficial 
programs that demonstrate our 
commitment to Queenslanders and the 
aspirations outlined in The Queensland 
Plan.  

Achieving objectives 
through strategic 
planning 
Strong, sustainable and resilient local 
governments are a key focus of the 
department along with good governance 
and sound financial planning and 
management. The department recognises 
that when local government has the 
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autonomy and capability to manage local 
and regional interests, the benefits are 
realised for all communities across the 
State. The department’s role is to ensure 
that Queensland’s 77 councils have the 
confidence and capacity to lead and guide 
strong local government. 

In pursuit of empowered local 
governments and resilient communities, 
the department undertakes wide ranging 
initiatives to achieve the objectives 
outlined in the Strategic Plan 2013-17.  

Strategic objectives 

The department’s objectives are achieved 
through the initiatives undertaken in each 
of the service areas and are closely aligned 

to state government objectives for the 
community and ministerial portfolio 
priorities. Our objectives are that: 

 councils have the authority and 
capacity to manage their interests, to 
be financially sustainable and 
accountable 

 councils have access to high quality 
capacity building programs and 
resources 

 recovery projects are delivered and 
resilience activities implemented to 
mitigate the effect of natural disasters 

 the department is informed, efficient 
and effective and part of the best 
public service in Australia.  

Objective Performance indicator 

Councils have the authority and autonomy to 
manage their interests, to be financially 
sustainable and accountable 

Four new councils established by January 2014 

Red tape is reduced 

Grant funding is allocated in accordance with 
state priorities 

The department’s response to issues and queries 
is timely, effective and consistent 

Outcomes 

 Introduced amendments to the Local Government Electoral Act 2011 which if passed will: 

– give councils’ chief executive officers the option to act as returning officer

– allow the Electoral Commission of Queensland to declare the mayoral result independently of
the councillors election result

– require candidates to register How-to-vote cards with the Electoral Commission of Queensland
prior to an election

– extend postal voting to all registered voters

– introduce proof of identity requirements at polling booths

 Four new councils - Noosa, Mareeba, Livingstone and Douglas were established on 
1 January 2014 

 New guidelines were released which simplify the process for conducting public interest tests on 
local laws 

 134 projects in 53 councils were funded under the 2013-14 Local Government Grants and 
Subsidies Program 

 83 complaint matters were received by the department in 2013-14 (with more than 60% of these 
received in the six months to June 2014) and approximately 50% of all matters were finalised as 
at 30 June 2014  

 Six complaint matters were referred to the Local Government, Remuneration and Discipline 
Tribunal. 
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Objective Performance indicator 

Councils have access to high quality capacity 
building programs and resources 

Targeted and high quality capacity building 
resources and training programs are developed 

Outcomes 

 Capacity building programs were delivered to 540 participants during 2013-14 as shown in 
figure 3 

 A range of online resources were revised or developed in 2013-14 including: 

- Councillor responsibilities under the Local Government Act 2009 – a councillor resource kit 

- Making the most of council meetings 

- Own source revenue: policies and options for local governments   

- Policies, processes and other matters – statutory requirements checklist and calendar 

- Local government website publications – statutory requirements checklist and calendar 

 A strategic monitoring and risk profiling program was implemented to: 

- identify councils experiencing financial or other risk  

- assist the department to better target capacity building initiatives for identified councils. 

Figure 3 Capacity building programs delivered in 2013-14 
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Objective Performance indicator 

Recovery projects are delivered and resilience 
activities implemented in response to natural 
disasters 

Effective coordination, governance and reporting 
of whole-of-government response to natural 
disasters 

Resilience projects delivered on time and on 
budget as per the Cabinet endorsed 2013 Flood 
Recovery Plan 

Outcomes 

 10 Get Ready Queensland disaster preparedness seminars were presented across the State 

 Six Cabinet progress reports were produced for the 2013 Queensland Flood Recovery Plan and 
the Severe Tropical Cyclone Ita Recovery Plan 

 Partnered with local governments and non-government organisations on the production of Get 
Ready Queensland related events 

 Developed yearly funding programs dedicated to local government and managed resilience 
projects, building state-wide disaster resilience 

 Provided assistance to local governments to systematically identify resilience projects to benefit 
communities 

 Developed robust and simplified reporting procedures to monitor progress of local government 
disaster resilience infrastructure projects and enable early identification of potential risks in 
delivery 

 Developed and implemented the 2013 Queensland Flood Recovery Plan and the Severe Tropical 
Cyclone Ita Recovery Plan to provide the framework to lead the recovery from these disaster 
events, including regular reporting of recovery progress to Cabinet 

 Released the Queensland Strategy for Disaster Resilience to provide strategic direction to build 
the State’s disaster resilience 

 Compiled 2014-15 State Resilience Activities Register to coordinate and manage the State 
Government’s disaster resilience initiatives 

 Coordinated and managed the service agreement between the Queensland Government and GIVIT 
for the two year trial program to match donations with community need after a disaster event  

 Provided reporting to the Government on the progress of the GIVIT trial, including number of 
donors, numbers of requests for assistance and numbers of matched needs met by the provider 

 $2 million was allocated to fund community based resilience initiatives shown in figure 4. 

Figure 4 Funding for community based resilience initiatives 
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Objective Performance indicator 

The department is informed, efficient and 
effective and part of the best public service in 
Australia 

Departmental staff work together to deliver 
smarter, simpler outcomes, are responsive to the 
needs of customers and are aware of the 
department’s priorities 

Departmental staff are trained and provided with 
learning and development opportunities 

The Service Level Agreement (SLA) with the 
Department of State Development, Infrastructure 
and Planning (DSDIP) works effectively so that 
issues are readily identified and managed 
efficiently 

Outcomes 

 Implemented the strategic monitoring and risk profiling program 

 14 ‘community of practice’ sessions were conducted for internal staff on topics related to local 
government, resilience and relevant legislation to enhance their ability to assist councils 

 Three staff members participated in the Council Placement Program 

 Maintained strong relationships between DSDIP and the department for the provision of services 
under the SLA. 
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Output performance 
The following section provides details 
of the department’s performance 
against Budget Paper 5, the 2014-15 
Service Delivery Statement (SDS) 
including budget outputs as at 
30 June 2014, including results 
against annual targets. 

The Service Delivery Statement 2014-15 
provides an overview of the department’s 
achievements during the 2013-14 
financial year and highlights expected 

performance in 2014-15. It covers non-
financial performance in service areas of 
the department, measured against service 
standards.  

As the Budget is delivered prior to the end 
of the financial year, estimated actual 
performance is provided in the Service 
Delivery Statement. The following data 
provides complete non-financial reporting 
information for the full 2013-14 financial 
year (see figures 5 and 6).  

Local Government 
Figure 5 Current service standards of the Local Government service area 

Percentage of local governments satisfied with advice and services provided by the department 

2013-14 
Target/ 
estimate 

2013-14 
Estimated 

actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

85% 82% 82% 

A survey response rate of 88.3 per 
cent was achieved from a pool of 
154 mayors and chief executive 
officers, with 82.4 per cent 
indicating they were satisfied or 
very satisfied.  
An actual performance result was 
not recorded for 2011-12 due to the 
coincidence of both state and local 
government elections in early 2012. 
The department considered it 
inappropriate to impose a detailed 
survey on local governments at the 
time. 
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Percentage of scheduled capacity building activities and training programs undertaken by the 
department completed within agreed timeframes and budget 

2013-14 
Target/ 
estimate 

2013-14 
Estimated 

actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

85% 100% 100% 

The wording of this service standard 
has been amended to include 
specific details about the programs 
and activities that are included in 
the measure. The calculation 
methodology for the measure 
remains unchanged. 

Percentage of Local Government Grants and Subsidies (Infrastructure) Program funding 
agreements managed according to agreed timeframes 

2013-14 
Target/ 
estimate 

2013-14 
Estimated 

actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

90% 100% 100% 

This was a new measure in 2013-14. 

Community Recovery and Resilience 
Figure 6 Current service standards of the Community Recovery and Resilience service area 

Percentage of Local Government Grants and Subsidies (Flood) Program funding agreements 
managed according to agreed timeframes 

2013-14 
Target/ 
estimate 

2013-14 
Estimated 

actual 

2013-14 
Actual 

90% 100% 100% 

This was a new measure in 2013-14. 
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Future priorities 
In 2014-15 the department plans to: 

 continue to review and administer a 
strategic policy and legislative 
framework and finalise the review of 
the Local Government Electoral Act 
2011 

 review the operation of the Partners in 
Government Agreement with the LGAQ 
and commence the process to renew 
the agreement which is due to expire in 
July 2015 

 ensure grant funding is administered 
effectively and in accordance with the 
Government’s priorities to support the 
Queensland Local Government Grants 
Commission 

 continue to improve environmental 
health infrastructure in Indigenous 
councils 

 work with councils to support timely 
completion of infrastructure and 
disaster recovery projects 

 monitor councils’ performance and 
corporate governance to identify 
appropriate capacity building 
programs, targeted assistance and 
intervention strategies 

 highlight local government financial 
sustainability issues and provide 
support to councils by practical advice 
and financial management training 
programs  

 provide practical advice and 
comprehensive online resources to 
promote understanding of local 
government legislation, good 
governance and accountability  

 foster stronger working relationships 
with local governments and the LGAQ 

 continue to co-deliver the Diploma of 
Local Government Administration 
program with the LGAQ, and sponsor 
suitably qualified candidates to 
undertake this diploma 

 assist Indigenous councils to identify 
rateable land and implement systems to 
enable them to levy general rates from 
July 2016 following the proposed issue 
of land valuations in early 2016  

 provide support and advice to newly 
appointed chief executive officers, with 
a focus on those in remote or 
Indigenous councils 

 work across Queensland Government 
agencies to broker collaborative 
solutions for councils 

 continue to implement the flood 
recovery work, increasing resilience to 
natural disasters across the State 

 monitor the planning and construction 
of disaster mitigation and resilience 
infrastructure projects delivered by 
local governments 

 oversee the implementation of the 
Queensland Strategy for Disaster 
Resilience 

 deliver the annual Get Ready 
Queensland disaster preparedness and 
resilience campaign 

 manage arrangements for the two year 
trial program with the not-for-profit 
organisation GIVIT (the grass-roots 
charity connecting those in need with 
those willing to give) 

Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
Annual Report 2013-14 

- 19 - 

 



 manage governance frameworks to 
oversee and coordinate recovery and 
resilience activities undertaken by 
Queensland Government agencies 

 progress and monitor implementation 
of initiatives arising from local 
government regional roundtable 
meetings   

 manage requests for changes to local 
government electoral arrangements, 
including the review of internal 
electoral boundaries that are out of 

quota, in preparation for the 2016 
quadrennial local government elections 

 review the Local Government 
Borrowing Program to improve 
processes and mitigate identified risks 

 facilitate improved and well-informed 
local government investment decision 
processes to ensure investment in 
appropriate local government 
infrastructure is identified and 
prioritised. 
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Our financial performance 

Summary 
The financial statements represent the 
Department of Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience 
established as a Queensland Government 
department under the Public Service Act 
2008. 

This section provides an overview of the 
financial statements of the Department of 
Local Government, Community Recovery 
and Resilience for the 2013–14 financial 
year, which are provided in detail at the 
‘Financial statements’ section of this 
report. 

Changes to the department 

The Public Services Departmental 
Arrangements Notice (No.8) 2013, dated 
1 November 2013, transferred the 
responsibility for administering the 

Natural Disaster, Relief and Recovery 
Arrangements and the Natural Disaster 
Resilience Program from the Public Safety 
Business Agency (PSBA) to the 
department. As a result, appropriation 
revenue, ten positions and assets were 
transferred to the department. 

Furthermore, as endorsed by the Police 
and Community Safety Review 
Implementation Committee, the Get Ready 
Queensland Program was transferred from 
the PSBA to the department and 
agreement between the Director-General 
of the Department and the Chief 
Executive Officer of the PSBA for the 
transfer of appropriation revenue and the 
grant program occurred, effective 1 
February 2014. 

Operating result 
Table 1 Operating result 

2014 
$‘000 

2013 
$’000 

Total Income 148,257 131,753 
Total Expenses 185,718 132,725 
Operating Result From Continuing Operations (37,461) (972) 
Increase in asset revaluation reserve - 1,615 
Total comprehensive income (37,461) 643 

The deficit for 2013-14 ($37.461 million) 
is mainly attributed to the transfer of 

infrastructure assets to indigenous council 
at nil value.
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Income 
Figure 7 Income by category for year ended 30 June 2014 

The department’s main income source is 
departmental services revenue from the 
State Government. In 2013-14 $143.020 
million was appropriated representing an 
increase of $17.331 million when 
compared with the 2012-13 year.  The 
increase of approximately 14 per cent is 
predominantly due to an increase in 
payments for local government capital 
and recurrent grants. 

User charges increased in the 2013-14 
year primarily due to an increase in costs 

recovered relating to the de-amalgamation 
of Councils.  

The finalisation of the Flexible Funding 
Program in 2013 for $3.875 million 
resulted in an overall decrease to Grants 
and other contributions. This decrease was 
offset by contributions received for the 
implementation of the Get Ready 
Resilience Initiative Program worth $1.800 
million. 

Expenses 
Figure 8 Expense by category for year ended 30 June 2014 

Departmental 
services revenue 

96.47% 

User charges 
0.66% 

Grants and 
other 

contributions 
2.49% 

Interest 0.38% 

Other revenue 
0.0% 

Employee 
expenses 7.0% 

Supplies and 
services 5.7% 

Grants and 
subsidies 86.6% 

Depreciation and 
amortisation 

0.6% 

Impairment 
Losses 0.0% 

Other expenses 
0.2% 
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The department’s main categories of 
expenses were Grants and subsidies, 
Employee expenses and Supplies and 
services. Grants and subsidies account for 
86.6% of the department’s total 
expenditure. Employee expenses account 
for 7.0% and Supplies and services 
account for 5.7% of the department’s total 
expenditure. 

In 2013–14, Grants and subsidies expense 
totalled $160.775 million (2012–13: 
$108.176 million). The 49 per cent 
increase in Grants and subsidies expense 

when compared to 2012-13 is largely 
related to the transfer of infrastructure 
assets to Indigenous Councils at nil value, 
the transfer of the administration for the 
Natural Disaster Resilience Program and 
South West Queensland Flood Mitigation 
Fund to the department from the (PSBA). 

Supplies and services increased by $0.647 
million to $10.582 million (2012-13: 
$9.934 million) including professional fees 
in connection with sustainable financial 
management of in some councils. 

Statement of Financial Position - Assets and Liabilities 
Table 2 Statement of financial position-assets and liabilities 

2014 
$’000 

2013 
$’000 

Total Assets 97,928 100,532 
Total Liabilities 19,316 7,675 

The decrease in assets is mainly due to the 
transfer of infrastructure assets to 
indigenous Councils, together with an 
increase in cash holdings relating to Grant 

programs.  Liabilities have increased due 
to the timing and value of payables at 
year end.  

Comparison of financial result with budget 
Table 3 Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2014 

Notes 2013–14 

Actual $’000 

2013–14 
Published 

Budget $’000 
Variance 

$’000 

Income 
Departmental services revenue 1 143,020 176,348 (33,328) 
User charges 2 978 430 548 
Grants and other contributions 3 3,685 0 3,648 
Other revenues / Interest 4 574 16 558 

Total income 148,257 176,794 (28,537) 
Expenses 

Employee expenses 12,980 13,073 (93) 
Supplies and services 5 10,582 15,526 (4,944) 
Grants and subsidies 6 160,775 149,714 11,060 
Depreciation and amortisation 1,072 149 923 
Impairment losses 1 0 1 
Other expenses 6 308 39,648 (39,340) 

Total expenses 185,718 218,110 (32,392) 
Operating result from continuing 
operations 

(37,461) (41,316) 3,855 
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Notes: 

The variances for these items can be explained as follows: 
1. Reduced income aligns with a reduction in total expenses.
2. An increase in user charges is primarily due to costs recovered from the de-amalgamation of

Councils.
3. Grants were received for the Get Ready Resilience Initiative from the former Department of

Community Safety for the first time in 2013-14.  Prior year grant refunds were also received
from Councils.

4. Other revenue relates mainly to notional interest recognised on the fair value of interest free
loans provided to three Councils.

5. The reduction in supplies and services relates primarily to the conversion of some construction
expenses to infrastructure assets.

6. The increase in grants and subsidies and reduction in Other expenses is largely due to a change
in accounting treatment whereby Queensland Treasury and Trade’s new Guideline Distinction
between Grants and Service Procurement Payments considers the transfer of infrastructure assets
to indigenous Councils as a grant, whereas in the past it was considered other expenditure. The
grants and subsides increase was partially offset by a deferral of funding from 2013-14 to 2014-
15 and the completion of several programs.

Table 4 Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2014 
Controlled items Notes 2013-14  

Actual 
$’000 

2013-14 
Published 

Budget 
$’000 

Variance 
$’000 

Current Assets 
Cash 1 29,478 8,797 20,681 
Receivables 2 8,777 7,749 1,028 
Other assets 3 (3) 

Total Current Assets 38,255 16,549 21,706 
Non-Current Assets 

Receivables 3 7,092 10,593 (3,501) 
Property, plant and equipment 4 52,581 42,558 10,023 

Total Non-Current Assets 59,673 53,151 6,522 
Total Assets 97,928 69,700 28,228 
Current Liabilities 

Payables 5 18,702 6,972 11,730 
Accrued employee benefits 6 492 1,673 (1,181) 
Other Liabilities 30 0 30 

Total Current Liabilities 19,224 8,645 10,579 
Non-Current Liabilities 

Payables 92 0 92 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 92 0 92 
Net Assets 78,612 61,055 17,557 
Equity 

Asset revaluation surplus 19,918 18,304 1,614 
Contributed equity 33,709 (310,018) 343,726 
Accumulated surplus 24,985 352,769 (327,784) 

Total Equity 78,612 61,055 17,557 

Notes: 
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The variances for these items can be explained as follows: 
1. The increase in cash is largely to pay the department's payables as at 30 June 2014 and reflects

the cash transfer resulting from the transfer of functions from the PSBA. 
2. Receivables reflects appropriation revenue receivable as at 30 June 2014.
3. Interest free loans provided to three Councils have been reduced to their fair value, for

accounting purposes. A notional interest charge has been applied as per note 4 in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income.

4. The increase in Property, plant & equipment in 2014 relates to the construction of infrastructure
assets.

5. Grants payable vary according to the timing of the certification and payment process.
6. The decrease in accrued employee benefits in 2014 reflects the full transition of non-

departmental staff from the departmental payroll system due to prior year machinery-of-
Government changes.
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Our governance arrangements
Governance is the system by which 
organisations are directed and 
controlled and good governance 
provides the foundations for sound 
decision making and accountability. 
The Director-General, as head of the 
department, is accountable to the 
Minister for governance of the 
department.  

The department’s integrated governance 
framework (figure 7): 

 has established processes for 
developing organisational strategy and 
direction 

 ensures compliance and accountability 

 contains clearly defined structures and 
relationships 

 maintains performance monitoring 
and review processes. 

The governance framework is 
underpinned by the principles of: 

 transparency, efficiency and 
accountability 

 sustainable development and 
management of assets and 
infrastructure 

 stewardship 

 integrity 

 leadership. 

The governance framework is reviewed 
annually or more frequently if required, 
to ensure it supports departmental 
decision making, achievement of 
outcomes and compliance with whole-of-
government goals and expectations.  

It includes the Executive Leadership Team 
(ELT) and two special purpose governance 
committees that provide expert advice 
and assistance. The Director-General 
chairs the ELT which is the department’s 
key leadership, decision-making and 
management forum. It is the 
responsibility of the ELT to determine if 
the governance and committee 
arrangements are providing efficient and 
effective service delivery.  

Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
Annual Report 2013-14 

- 26 - 

 



Figure 7 Our governance framework 

Executive Council Parliament 

(Administrative arrangements) (Legislative and regulatory 
requirements) 

Cabinet Minister 

(Objectives/whole-of-government 
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(Acts administered/ Ministerial Charter) 
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Review 
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Corporate management Service delivery 

Governance 
committees 

Executive Leadership Team 

Craig Evans AM, Director-General—
responsible for the efficient, effective and 
economic administration of the agency 

Stephen Johnston, Deputy Director-
General, Local Government—responsible 
for driving the relationship between local 
governments and the State 

Amanda Pafumi, Deputy Director-
General, Strategy, Governance and 
Resilience—responsible for leading and 
guiding the government’s work to build 
community resilience and for ensuring 
corporate strategy and support 
responsibilities are achieved 

Bill Gilmore, Director, Finance and 
Funding—responsible for monitoring and 
enhancing the financial capability of 
local governments, leading the 
administration of local government 
funding programs and supporting the 
Queensland Local Government Grants 
Commission 

Max Barrie, Director, Program 
Implementation and Review—responsible 
for ensuring local governments capability 
development is delivered in line with the 
needs of local governments throughout 
Queensland and managing a range of 
regulatory functions including complaints 
about councillor conduct 

Bronwyn Blagoev, Director, Policy, Legal 
and Corporate Support—responsible for 
ensuring legislative and policy 
frameworks meet the needs of the 
department’s local government, 
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community recovery and resilience 
portfolios and that the department’s 
corporate environment provides for 
strong governance and accountability 

Jo Beadle, Director, Resilience and 
Recovery—responsible for the 
development and implementation of the 
State’s disaster resilience strategies and 
initiatives and the coordination and 
management of disaster recovery through 
whole of government recovery plans 

Jo Stephenson, Regional Director, 
Northern Region—responsible for 
ensuring service delivery in northern 
regional Queensland aligns with the 
needs of local governments 

Jennie O’Connor, Acting Regional 
Director, Southern Region—responsible 
for ensuring service delivery in southern 
regional Queensland aligns with the 
needs of local governments 

Vacant (as at 30 June 2014), Director, 
Information Management—responsible for 
delivering information management, 
reporting, media and communication 
services (Margot Furlonger vacated 
position 5 March 2014) 

Vacant (as at 30 June 2014), Director, 
Renewal and Change—responsible for 
development and implementation of 
the department’s renewal program and 
reporting on the government’s response 
to disaster events and community 
resilience initiatives (position created 23 
May 2014) 

Financial and Asset 
Management Oversight 

The ELT is responsible for providing 
finance and asset management oversight. 
To support this role, the Chief Finance 

Officer attends ELT meetings on a 
fortnightly basis to engage with the team 
regarding: 

 identifying budget and financial 
issues, including overseeing 
departmental budget processes 
(including Cabinet Budget Review 
Committee submissions and State 
Budget papers) 

 developing strategies and 
methodologies to improve resource 
usage and align with the department’s 
objectives 

 monitoring business performance and 
use of resources through the monthly 
report 

 examining procurement issues. 

Additionally, the Chief Finance Officer 
meets with the Director-General and 
Deputy Directors-General as required. 
This flexible approach provides ongoing 
assurance regarding: 

 financial administration and reporting 

 legislative compliance 

 internal controls. 

Audit and Risk Management 
Committee 

The Audit and Risk Management 
Committee (ARMC) was established 
pursuant to the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 
2009. 

The ARMC provides independent 
assurance and assistance to the Director-
General on the department’s: 

 risks, control and compliance 
frameworks 
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 external accountability responsibilities 
as prescribed in legislation and 
standards. 

The ARMC Charter establishes the 
authority and responsibilities of the 
committee and was prepared with 
reference to:  

 relevant provisions of the Financial 
Accountability Act 2009 and Financial 
and Performance Management 
Standard 2009  

 Queensland Treasury and Trade Audit 
Committee Guidelines—Improving 
Accountability and Performance  

 better practice guidance issued by the 
Australian National Audit Office 

 legislative, regulatory and other 
requirements—promoting a culture of 
lawful and ethical behaviour. 

The ARMC met on four occasions during 
2013–14.  

Information Steering Committee 

The Information Steering Committee (ISC) 
provides the Director-General with advice 
and recommendations regarding the 
strategic direction and use of information 
and communications technologies (ICT) 
and provides assurance regarding 
ongoing ICT asset management and 
replacement.  

The ISC is supported by the Information 
Management Subcommittee, which 
provides advice and recommendations on 
the management of records, information, 
communications and technology assets as 
well as investment proposals for the 
operation of ICT activities. 

The Director, Policy, Legal and Corporate 
Support is a member of the ISC, which 

meets quarterly or as otherwise 
determined by the Chair. 

Related entities and 
government bodies 
The department administers or provides 
secretariat services to the following 
entities: 

Queensland Local Government 
Grants Commission 

A statutory body comprised of five 
external members and one senior officer 
from the department, established under 
the Local Government Act 2009, the 
Local Government Grants Commission: 

 makes recommendations to the 
Minister with respect to the finances 
of local governing bodies, particularly 
regarding the annual Commonwealth 
Financial Assistance Grant (FAG) 

 collects data from councils annually 
and uses other State and Australian 
Government data to inform annual 
FAG recommendations.  

In 2013-14 the Commission: 

 held five meetings 

 visited 15 councils to explain funding 
allocation methodology and to hear 
concerns 

 allocated the FAG, totalling $446.4 
million, approved by the then federal 
Minister responsible for local 
government and approved a draft 
allocation for the 2014-15 FAG 

 collected data from 59 councils to 
inform the FAG allocation process and 
to form the basis of the Comparative 
Information Report. 
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Costs 

Total costs associated with remuneration 
for the Commission amounted to $57,400 
in 2013-14. This included $35,700 for 
related travel and accommodation 
expenses for meetings and visits to 
councils throughout Queensland 
including rural and remote locations.  

Local Government Remuneration 
and Discipline Tribunal 

A statutory body established under the 
Local Government Act 2009, the Local 
Government Remuneration and Discipline 
Tribunal (the Tribunal) is an independent 
body responsible for deciding the 
remuneration payable to local 
government mayors, deputy mayors and 
councillors. The Tribunal also has a 
discipline function to hear and determine 
the most serious allegations of councillor 
misconduct.  

In 2013-14 the Tribunal: 

 delivered its 2013 report to the 
Honourable David Crisafulli MP, 
Minister for Local Government, 
Community Recovery and Resilience 
on 28 November 2013 

 determined to increase remuneration 
levels for councils in each category of 
local government by 3% on an 
annualised basis 

 reassigned Maranoa Regional Council 
from Category 3 to Category 4 and all 
Special Category and Category 1 and 2 
councils were assigned to Category 3 

 introduced pro-rata payments to all 
Category 3 councillors (not including 
mayors and deputy mayors) 
contingent upon attendance at each of 
the 12 mandated council meetings 
required each year 

 heard allegations of six serious 
conduct matters during the period 1 
July 2013 to 30 June 2014. 

Costs 

Total costs associated with remuneration 
for the Tribunal amounted to $28,900 in 
2013-14.  

Regional Conduct Review Panels 

The Regional Conduct Review Panels are 
established under the Local Government 
Act 2009. The panels, when convened, 
provide an independent mechanism for 
hearing and deciding allegations of 
misconduct against councillors. There are 
22 members appointed across the State. 
Panels are convened as required 
comprising three persons, one of whom is 
appointed as chairperson. 

In 2013-14 the department received more 
than 80 allegations of misconduct against 
councillors. Not all matters are assessed 
as misconduct. Serious allegations are 
referred to the Local Government 
Remuneration and Discipline Tribunal 
while allegations that, if proven, would 
constitute official misconduct are referred 
to the Crime and Corruption Commission 
(CCC). Seven matters were referred to six 
Regional Conduct Review Panels for 
hearing and determination. 

For the 2013-14 period, all external 
investigation and panel member costs 
relating to panel hearings and 
determinations are recoverable from 
individual councils in accordance with 
section 191 of the Local Government Act 
2009. 

Costs 

Total costs associated with remuneration 
for the Panels amounted to $69,100 in 
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2013-14. Of this $56,600 related was 
recovered from councils 

Ethics and integrity 
The department’s ethics and integrity 
framework ensures systems, policies, 
procedures and resources are in place to 
provide assurance that all activities are 
conducted in an ethical, accountable and 
transparent manner.  

The framework covers important integrity 
services and functions including 
complaints management, lobbyist 
contacts, declarations of interest 
registration, gift and benefits registration, 
ethics advice and training, liaison with 
the CCC, public interest disclosure 
management and fraud and corruption 
prevention. 

The department has embedded the 
principles and values of the Public Sector 
Ethics Act 1994 explicitly and implicitly 
in its strategic planning process and 
documents and in its human resource 
management policies and procedures. The 
department engages with employees, the 
general public and the private sector in 
an honest, impartial and accountable 
manner. Ethical principles and values are 
incorporated in employees’ Performance 
and Development Agreements. 

Departmental employees uphold the Code 
of Conduct for the Queensland Public 
Service. Employees receive regular 
training in the Code of Conduct including 
at induction, through online training and 
specific targeted face to face training 
provided by departmental and external 

training providers. Online training in 
ethical decision making has been updated 
and redeveloped and will be rolled out to 
staff in the coming financial year. More 
intensive workshop style ethics and 
integrity training has been rolled out 
across the department. 

The department supports managers and 
staff to implement the code throughout 
their work by providing: 

 access to the code on the department’s 
intranet and internet websites 

 supplementary face to face training in 
the code and ethics and integrity 
topics for a number of targeted 
business areas 

 access to external training on ethics 
and integrity related matters including 
‘Your Ethical Compass’ training from 
the Queensland Ombudsman’s Office 

 managers workshops on a range of 
ethics and integrity related corporate 
governance topics 

 policies and procedures with practical 
guidance 

 responses to requests for advice on 
ethics matters by telephone and email 

 online tools, resources and support 
networks 

 management of complaints and 
allegations of alleged breaches of the 
code  

 maintaining close cooperation and 
liaison with the CCC 

 monitoring of trends and issues and 
implementation of improvements as a 
result of lessons learned from cases 
and complaints. 
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Managing risk and being accountable 

Risk management 
The department uses a customised risk 
management framework that is in line 
with Australian Standards and 
Queensland Treasury and Trade 
guidelines. 

The underlying objective of risk 
management is to appropriately prioritise 
and take action to enhance positive 
outcomes and limit undesirable outcomes 
in order to most appropriately and 
efficiently deliver on the department’s 
objectives. 

Objective risk identification, assessment, 
monitoring and treatment are used to 
actively inform business decision-
making. 

Risk management is further integrated 
into the department’s planning cycle at 
an operational level, with the use of 
environmental scanning to ensure risks 
and opportunities are identified and 
subsequent actions appropriately 
aligned to the department’s objectives. 

During 2013-14 the Queensland Audit 
Office (QAO) undertook an area of 
emphasis audit to assess the relevance 
and appropriateness of risk management 
procedures and assessments. No 
significant weaknesses or deficiencies 
were identified by the audit. 

External scrutiny 

Auditor-General reports 

In addition to his audit of the 
department’s financial statements, the 

Auditor-General conducted audits during 
the year where recommendations were 
specifically addressed to the department 
or addressed to all agencies to consider. 
These audits included: 

 Auditor-General’s Report 10: 2013–14, 
Contract Management Renewal and 
Transition tabled in Parliament 
3 December 2013  

 Auditor-General’s Report 14: 2013–14, 
Results of Audit: Local Government 
Entities 2012–13 tabled in Parliament 
18 March 2014 

 Auditor-General’s Report 18: 2013-14, 
Monitoring and Reporting 
Performance tabled in Parliament 
26 June 2014. 

Recommendations addressed to the 
department were accepted and 
management plans are in place to 
implement those recommendations. 
Progress in implementing Auditor-
General recommendations is monitored 
and followed-up by Internal Audit and 
reviewed by the ARMC. 

Audit and Risk 
Management 
Committee 
Membership of the ARMC and 
remuneration (if applicable) in 2013-14: 

 Eric Muir – Chair and external 
member of the ARMC. Remuneration: 
$6,737 

 Karen Smith-Pomeroy, Chief Risk 
Officer Business Intelligence 
Transformation, Suncorp Group – 
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external member of the ARMC. 
Remuneration: $1,155 

 Craig Evans, Director-General 

 Pat Morgan, Executive Director, 
Corporate Services, DSDIP. 

Key achievements for the ARMC during 
2013–14 included: 

 reviewed and endorsed the 
department’s financial statements for 
the year ended 30 June 2013  

 reviewed and endorsed the 
department’s Internal Audit Strategic 
Plan 2014–2017/Annual Audit Plan 
2014–15 

 endorsed the ARMC Charter and the 
Internal Audit Charter for 2014–15 

 received regular reports on internal 
audit activities including audits and 
reviews completed as part of the 
Annual Audit Plan 2013–14  

 reviewed and considered the QAO 
Strategic Audit Plan and the 
Client Strategy for the department   

 considered the scheduling, status and 
findings of QAO financial and 
performance audits  

 oversaw the implementation status of 
internal and external audit 
recommendations  

 endorsed the department’s Risk 
Management Framework 2013 and 
received regular reports on the 
department’s risk status  

 endorsed the department’s Fraud and 
Corruption Prevention Plan 2013. 

The ARMC considers that it has observed 
the terms of its Charter and has had due 
regard to Queensland Treasury and Trade 
Audit Committee Guidelines. 

Internal audit 
In accordance with section 29 of the 
Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2009 the Director-General has 
established an independent internal audit 
function. 

The Internal Audit function must operate 
under an internal audit charter which sets 
the purpose, authority and responsibilities 
of the department’s internal audit 
function.  

The Internal Audit Charter has been 
prepared with reference to: 

 the relevant provisions of the 
Financial Accountability Act 2009 
and the Financial and Performance 
Management Standard 2009  

 IIA International Professional Practice 
Framework 

 the Queensland Treasury and Trade 
Audit Committee Guidelines: 
Improving Accountability and 
Performance 

 better practice guidance issued by the 
Australian National Audit Office. 

Internal Audit provides independent and 
objective advice to the Director-General. 
Through its assurance activities, Internal 
Audit aids the Director-General in the 
discharge of his statutory functions and 
duties as accountable officer. The scope 
of internal audit coverage, including for 
2013-14, was set out in the Internal 
Audit Strategic Plan 2013–16. This plan 
follows a risk based methodology, 
balancing emerging issues against 
reviews of core business and 
transactional processes.  

During 2013-14: 
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 Internal Audit operated under an 
Internal Audit Charter that was 
endorsed by the ARMC and approved 
by the Director-General; the Charter is 
consistent with accepted auditing and 
ethical standards 

 Internal Audit services were provided 
by DSDIP via a Service Level 
Agreement 

 Ms Jo Buckley CA B.Com was the 
Head of Internal Audit. 

Achievements of Internal Audit during 
2013-14 included: 

 provided advisory services to the 
department in order to improve risk 
management, control and governance, 
and improve business operations  

 completed all audits and reviews as 
agreed with the ARMC, resulting in 
appropriate management 
recommendations for improving 
governance processes and business 
operations  

 proactive follow-up with management 
regarding their timely implementation 
of internal and external audit 
recommendations  

 provided secretariat services as 
outlined in the ARMC Charter 

 proactive participation in the whole-
of-government Corporate Services 
Preliminary Evaluation Pilot Project 
conducted by the Public Service 
Commission, related to internal audit 
services 

 use of a co-sourced service delivery 
model for the provision of an effective 
internal audit function. 

Information systems 
and recordkeeping 
Good recordkeeping practices assist the 
department to efficiently capitalise on 
existing knowledge and experience. They 
also support consistency, continuity, 
efficiency and productivity in customer 
service, program delivery, management 
and administration. 

The ongoing use and maintenance of best 
practice records management policy, 
procedures and systems including an 
electronic document records management 
system (eDRMS) called TRIM enables the 
department to capture, maintain and 
protect the accuracy and reliability of its 
records for as long as they are required to 
support business, regulatory, social and 
cultural needs. The TRIM system provides 
a secure, effective and efficient 
management of correspondence, 
documents and records. 

The department uses the whole-of-
government SAP and Aurion systems for 
finance and human resource management 
respectively. 

Committed to meeting our responsibilities 
under the Public Records Act 2002, the 
department protects information assets 
through our Recordkeeping Policy. This 
ensures that departmental records are the 
basis for organisational accountability, 
current and future policy formation and 
management decision making. It supports 
compliance with legislative and 
regulatory requirements and 
documentation of departmental activities, 
developments and achievements. 

Our records management approach 
includes: 
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 implementing and maintaining a 
Records Management Framework that 
includes clear and concise policy, 
procedures and work instructions 

 managing programs and 
recordkeeping systems that comply 
with legislation and government 
directives including collaboration and 
sharing tools 

 preparing to implement Paper Lite 
approaches to records management by 
adhering to the following key 
principles over the next two years: 

– born digital, stay digital strategy -
new documents received or created
should remain in digital format

– digitisation and electronic
processing

– ensure eDRMS is in place and use
is maximised in all business groups

– use of collaboration and sharing
tools that incorporate records
management

– develop and implement retention
and disposal schedules as well as
archives management and
reduction strategies

– use cultural reform to drive cross-
agency collaboration including
development and sharing of
policies and training initiatives
such as clear desk and government
records awareness

 developing baseline storage 
requirements 

 establishing realistic performance 
goals and effective monitoring 
programs 

 leading cultural reform by creating 
supportive recordkeeping awareness 
resources and system training to 
provide proactive staff assistance, 
guidance and awareness of legislative 
responsibilities 

 retention and disposal of public 
records in accordance with the Public 
Records Act 2002 and the General 
Retention and Disposal Schedule for 
Administrative Records. A 
Departmental Retention and Disposal 
Schedule was developed and endorsed 
by the Queensland State Archivist 
during 2013–14. 

Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
Annual Report 2013-14 

- 31 - 

 



Our workforce 
The Human Resources branch of DSDIP 
provides advice and services to the 
department under an SLA.  

Workforce profile 
As at 30 June 2014, the department had 
108 fulltime equivalent staff with a head 
count of 112. The permanent separation 
rate for the 2013-14 financial year was 
eight per cent.  

Staff annual earnings, showing the 
proportion of male and female staff in 
earnings ranges for 2013-14 are shown in 
figure 8. 

Representation of employees by age 
group as at 30 June 2014 is illustrated in 
figure 9. 

Figure 8 Employees by annual salary 
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Figure 9 Employees by age group 

Workforce planning 
The department recognises the 
importance of building and sustaining 
an agile and flexible workforce to meet 
current and future service delivery needs. 

In 2013-14 the department implemented 
human resource policies, strategies and 
programs that enabled the attraction, 
development and retention of a range of 
highly skilled employees focused on 
service delivery. We continued to build a 
culture that values and embraces health 
and safety, leadership and management 
capability, performance management, 
diversity and encourages work-life 
balance. 

During the year the department also 
developed its Strategic Workforce Plan to 
adhere to the Commission of Audit 
recommendations. 

Performance 
management 
A revised employee management 
framework was implemented in 2013-14 
which enables contribution to the 
achievement of the department and 
government priorities through effective 
and efficient employment on-boarding, 
induction, performance agreements, 
rewards and recognition and performance 
improvement processes. 

The framework focuses on planning for 
improvement in service delivery, 
incorporating the Queensland Public 
Service values and providing opportunity 
for greater employee engagement and 
performance.   

The new performance and development 
process ‘MyPDA’ focuses on performance 
conversations that are regular and 
ongoing throughout a 12 month period. 
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Highlighting the importance of 
performance conversations encourages 
relationship building and empowering 
our employees, creating a flow of 
communication to allow in-depth 
understanding of how each individual 
contributes to the department’s goals and 
objectives. 

Developing our people 
The department is committed to 
developing a high performing, skilled 
workforce demonstrating strong 
leadership, customer focus and forward 
thinking, to align with business 
objectives of a ‘delivery’ culture 
partnering with strategic stakeholders. 
Succession strategies for critical roles 
include building internal talent through 
capability development, relieving 
opportunities and mobility programs. 

A suite of sector-wide and in-house 
learning and leadership development 
activities aligned to the Capability and 
Leadership Framework were available in 
2013-14. These included a range of 
corporate, specialist, management and 
leadership capability development 
programs covering topics including 
business planning, coaching, complaints 
management, culture-wise practice, 
ethical and good decision-making, 
financial and project management and 
recordkeeping. Executive leaders are 
supported to participate in regular 
professional development workshops 
brokered by the Public Service 
Commission. 

Additionally, a number of staff accessed 
study and research assistance to gain or 
improve qualifications in capabilities 

related to their professional roles 
including masters and bachelor degrees 
in leadership, business, economics, and 
accounting. 

Industrial and 
employee relations 
framework 
The department’s managers and 
employees are provided advice and 
support in relation to entitlements, 
policies, processes and performance by 
the Human Resources branch. This 
includes intervention strategies to assist 
with the early resolution and 
management of issues at the local level. 

In 2013-14 a policy reform project was 
initiated to review all human resource 
policies, procedures, guidelines and forms 
with the objective of ensuring the 
provision of current, concise information 
that is easy to use and understand. 
Streamlined processes were implemented 
and duplication and bureaucracy were 
addressed. Most documents were updated 
by 30 June 2014 with further 
improvements, such as the inclusion of 
smart forms, to be undertaken as soon as 
practicable in 2014-15. 

The department was not party to any 
industrial disputes during 2013-14. There 
were no disciplinary actions taken by 
the department and no employees were 
suspended.  

Consultative Committee 

The Consultative Committee (the 
Committee) is the principal consultative 
body for unions and management 
within the department, created pursuant 
to 
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Part 9 of the Certified Agreement 2009 
(Core EB). The Committee considers: 

 organisational change and 
restructuring 

 workload management 

 balancing work, life and family 

 workforce data 

 organisational matters such as review 
of, changes to, or introduction of new 
workforce management policies. 

The Committee meets on an as required 
basis. 

Work Health Safety Committee 

The Work Health Safety Committee’s 
(WHSC) roles and responsibilities are to: 

 assist in developing standards, 
policies, procedures and training 
programs 

 engage consultants relating to work 
health and safety 

 facilitate cooperation between the 
Director-General and employees 
regarding health and safety issues. 

The WHSC services the department and 
DSDIP in recognition of the shared 
corporate support arrangements and the 
similarity of work, health and safety 
issues encountered. 

Early retirement, 
redundancy and 
retrenchment 
During the period, one employee received 
a redundancy package at a cost of 
$55,100. Employees who did not accept 
an offer of redundancy were offered case 
management for a set period of time, 
where reasonable attempts were made to 
find alternative employment placements.  

During the period one employee received 
a retrenchment package at a cost of 
$11,400. 
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Financial statements 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income by Major Departmental Service 

Statement of Assets and Liabilities by Major Departmental Service 

Notes To and Forming Part of the Financial Statements 

Management Certificate 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

General information 

These financial statements cover the Department of Local Government, Community 
Recovery and Resilience (the department). 

The Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience is a Queensland 
Government department established under the Public Service Act 2008.  

The department is controlled by the State of Queensland which is the ultimate parent. 

The head office and principal place of business of the department is: 

Level 17 
Mineral House 
41 George Street 
Brisbane Queensland 4000 

A description of the nature of the department’s operations and its principal activities 
is included in the notes to the financial statements. 

Amounts shown in these financial statements may not add to the correct sub-totals or 
totals due to rounding. 

For information in relation to the department’s financial statement please call 
+61 7 3452 6930, email info@dlgcrr.qld.gov.au or visit the department’s website 
www.dlgcrr.qld.gov.au.  
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Income from continuing operations
Appropriation revenue for services
User charges and fees
Grants and other contributions
Interest
Other revenue

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses
Other expenses

Total expenses from continuing operations

Operating result from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to operating result
Increase in asset revaluation surplus

Total comprehensive income

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

9,935

132,725

-
1,01313

10 160,775

185,718

1,61521

12

-

5 568 848

1

(972)

10,582
12,980

(37,461) 643

2014 

131,753

12,538

148,257

143,020

3

2013 

2
3

308

125,689        

9
7 & 8

Notes $'000 $'000

4,3804
978

6

(37,461)

1,063
108,176

833

6

3,685

1,07211
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2014

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Receivables
Property, plant and equipment

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Payables
Accrued employee benefits
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Payables
Other non-current liabilities 

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity
Contributed equity
Accumulated surplus
Asset revaluation surplus

Total equity

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

15

7,675

567

6,186

537
30

7,108

92
-

19,224

18,702

10,493

78,612 92,857

17,714

97,928 100,532

2014 
$'000 

78,612

82,818

16

18
19
20

18
20

15

2013 

13,947

59,673

75,155

29,478

52,581
7,663

38,255

7,092

Notes

14

$'000 

492 922

19,91821 19,918

30

92

62,446

92,857

-

8,777 3,767

19,316

24,985
33,709
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Balance as at 1 July 2012

Restated balance as at 1 July 2012

Operating result from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners as owners:

Net transactions with owners as owners

Balance as at 30 June 2013

Balance as at 1 July 2013

Operating result from continuing operations
Transactions with owners as owners:

Net transactions with owners as owners

Balance as at 30 June 2014

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

18,303
- Transfer of negative contributed equity

- (973)

- (973) - (973)

- Increase in asset revaluation surplus

Asset 
revaluation 

surplus
(note 21)

$'000

1,615

$'000

(338,361) 401,780

- 63,419 18,303

$'000

642

Total
$'000

81,722

Contributed 
equity

Accumulated 
surplus

1,615

10,493 62,446

Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience

10,493

- 1,615

- Appropriated equity injections (note 2)

Total

19,918 92,857

-

338,361 (338,361) -

10,534 - - 10,534

-
81,722

-

10,493 - -

- machinery-of-Government adjustments 

- (37,461)(37,461)

- Appropriated equity injections (note 2) - -
-

23,216 23,216

24,985 19,918

-7,852

78,612

7,852
-

15,364

33,709

-

15,364

- Prior year machinery-of-Government adjustments (41) - - (41)

10,493 62,446 19,918 92,857

Contributed 
equity

Accumulated 
surplus

Asset 
revaluation 

surplus
(note 21)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

- 39 -



Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Inflows:

Service appropriation receipts
User charges and fees
Grants and other contributions
Recoveries from other departments
GST input tax credits from Australian Taxation Office
GST collected from customers  
Interest receipts
Other

Outflows:

Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
GST paid to suppliers
GST remitted to Australian Taxation Office
Other 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Inflows:

Sales of property, plant and equipment
Loans and advances redeemed

Outflows:

Payments for property, plant and equipment

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Inflows:

Equity injections
Outflows:

Equity withdrawals

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Net cash and cash equivalents transferred via machinery-of-Government adjustments

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year

The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

2,973

14

7,852

(12,690)

15,364

282

9

126,409

10,974

(12,607)

136,652

Notes $'000 

1,599

434

887

7,166

2014 

3,000

13,947

11,637

(1,103)

7,680

2013 

2,894

3

(13,000)

(344)

11,88922

(573)

14,472

1,103

10,534

512

42

4,316

$'000 

68

16,467

13,947

(1,103)

29,478

(3,015)

1,103

(14,361)

(12,783)

(13,942)
(108,900)

(6,225)

(309)

(11,447)

-

6,678

(108,176)

233

(15,464)

-

(399)
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME BY MAJOR DEPARTMENTAL SERVICES
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Income from continuing operations*
Appropriation revenue for services
User charges and fees
Grants and other contributions
Interest
Other revenue
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations*
Employee expenses
Supplies and services
Grants and subsidies
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment losses
Other expenses

Operating result from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income

Increase in asset revaluation surplus
Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

* Allocation of income and expenses to corporate services (disclosure only):
Income
Expenses

(1) For the period 1 March 2013 onwards
# Refer note 1(u)
The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

30 (219)

-

- -
- -

19,729 780

(754)

1,013

--

642(37,461)30 (219)(37,491)

1,615

(37,461)

185,718 132,725

861

Total expenses from continuing operations

1
19 12289

165,989

-
1,063

131,944
1,001 308

973 292
963 218

17,774 258

537 30 568

12,98012,007

56119,759128,497 148,257

979

$'000

1,046

143,020 125,689

$'000 $'000 $'000

3,685
833978

4,380

108,176
1,072

9,620
143,000

125,929 17,091
(1)

Local Government #

$'000

Total

2014
$'000

2014

Community Recovery and 
Resilience (1) #
2014 2013 20132013

848
2

2
38

519
-

810

125,170
833

2,639

(973)(37,491)

36

9,935

1
1,063

10,582

-

160,775
1,072

12,538

131,752
16

4,378

1

9,717
12,246

107,916

131,190

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to operating result

- 1,615 - - - 1,615

8,263             
8,263             

8,153             
8,153             

8,007             
8,007             

784 
784 

256 
256 

8,937             
8,937             

- 1,615
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience
STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY MAJOR DEPARTMENTAL SERVICES   
as at 30 June 2014

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Payables
Accrued employee benefits
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Payables
Other non-current liabitlies
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

(1) General non-attributed relates to receivables and payables for services transferred from/to the department.
* Please note the department has systems in place to allocate assets and liabilities by departmental service
The accompanying notes form part of these statements.

-

1

537

-
894

-

4,542
48

-

-

-
-

6,982

9,011

7,663

29,244 16,677 133

7,092

56792
30

--
-
-

29

-

133

52,580

444

92
-

14,636

14,727 4,589 1337,549

-
4,589

Local Government

2,844
13,833

19

$'000
2013

114
7,617 1,159

7,85221,626

2014
$'000

Community Recovery and 
Resilience

2013

-

29,478
904

2013

82,818
75,155-

59,673

-

--

7,663

-

-

(6)
492

7,092

100,532

6,186
922

-
-

- 7,67519,316

(6)
-

-

537

19,224

92-

30
7,108

567
30- -

92

-

(6)

-

97,928

904

18,702-

-

904

30

17,714

52,581-

38,255-

1

6,088

-
82,818

9,012 133

-

99,49588,916

59,672
75,155

10414,161

Total

2013
$'000 $'000
2014

13,947
3,7678,777

General—Not attributed (1)

-
--

$'000
2014

$'000 $'000 $'000
2014
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Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14     

Objectives and principal activities of the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery 
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Objectives and principal activities of the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience (the department) 

The objectives of the department are to: 

- Foster a legislative and policy framework that gives councils the authority and capacity to manage their 
interests, provide efficient front line services and deliver sound financial management; 

- Provide councils with a sound understanding of their roles and responsibilities and develop capacity and 
confidence to serve the community they represent and build communities that are more resilient to, and better 
prepared for, the impact of natural disasters.  

1. Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance 

The department has prepared these financial statements in compliance with section 42 of the Financial and 
Performance Management Standard 2009. 

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements and have been prepared on an accrual basis 
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations.  In addition, the financial statements 
comply with Queensland Treasury and Trade’s Minimum Reporting Requirements for the year ending 
30 June 2014, and other authoritative pronouncements. 

With respect to compliance with Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations, the department has applied 
those requirements applicable to not-for-profit entities, as the department is a not-for-profit department. Except 
where stated, the historical cost convention is used. 

(b) The reporting entity 

The financial statements include the value of all income, expenses, assets, liabilities and equity of the department. 

The major departmental services undertaken by the department are disclosed in paragraph 1(ad). 

2013-14 Changes to the reporting entity 

Responsibility for Natural Disaster, Relief and Recovery Arrangements, the Natural Disaster Resilience Program 
and Get Ready Queensland Program were transferred from the Public Safety Business Agency to the department 
during 2013–14, refer note 1(ae). 

(c) Administered transactions and balances 

The department administers, but does not control, certain resources on behalf of the Queensland Government. In 
doing so, it has responsibility and is accountable for administering related transactions and items, but does not 
have the discretion to deploy the resources for the achievement of the department's objectives. 

Major administered revenues include appropriations and grants received from the Commonwealth and the 
Queensland Government that are forwarded onto local governments and the Queensland Reconstruction Authority, 
refer to note 28. 

The principal physical resources administered by the department are seven land reserves on which the 
department’s infrastructure assets are situated. These assets provide water to the Northern Peninsula Area 
Regional Council. The seven land reserves have, in the past, been reported as controlled land assets of the 
department at a nominal value of $1 each. The department has reassessed the previous recognition approach in 
2013–14, transferring the land assets to Administered Activities and revaluing them in accordance with AASB 13 
Fair Value Measurement and AASB 116 Property Plant and Equipment.  

On 4 February 2013, as a result of Administrative Arrangements Amendment Order (No.1) 2013, the Queensland 
Reconstruction Authority was transferred from the Minister for State Development, Infrastructure and Planning to 
the Ministerial portfolio of Local Government, Recovery and Resilience.  The department receives administered 
funding that is paid to the Authority as grant funding.  For departmental administered financial statement purposes, 
the transfer is deemed to have occurred from the first day of the month following the gazettal date, that is, from 1 
March 2013. 

The authority is a statutory body under the Queensland Reconstruction Authority Act 2011 and prepares separate 
financial statements. 

(d) Appropriation revenue for services/administered revenue 

Appropriations provided under the Appropriation Act 2014 are recognised as revenue in the year the department 
obtains control over them. 
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(d) Appropriation revenue for services/administered revenue (continued) 

Amounts appropriated to the department for transfer to other entities in accordance with legislative or other 
requirements are reported as 'administered' item appropriations, refer to note 28. 

(e) User charges and fees 

User charges and fees controlled by the department are recognised as revenues when the revenue has been 
earned and can be measured reliably with a sufficient degree of certainty. When the services have been performed, 
and/or ownership of the goods has passed to the clients, the revenue is recognised by either raising invoices or 
accruals. User charges and fees are controlled by the department where they can be deployed for the achievement 
of departmental objectives. 

(f) Grants and other contributions 

Grants, contributions, donations and gifts that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year 
the department obtains control over them (control is generally obtained at the time of receipt).  Where grants are 
received that are reciprocal in nature, revenue is progressively recognised as it is earned, according to the terms of 
the funding arrangements. 

Contributed assets are recognised at their fair value. The accounting treatment for contributions of services is 
explained in note 1(w). 

(g) Special payments 

Special payments include ex-gratia expenditure and other expenditure that the department is not contractually or 
legally obligated to make to other parties.  In compliance with the Financial and Performance Management 
Standard 2009, the department maintains a register setting out details of all special payments greater than $5,000. 

There are no special payments recorded for the department.  

(h) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Cash Flows, cash assets include all 
cash and cheques receipted but not banked at 30 June 2014 as well as deposits at call with financial institutions.  

(i) Receivables 

Trade debtors are recognised at the amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e.  the agreed 
purchase/contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from the invoice date. 

The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically with an allowance being made for impairment. All known 
bad debts were written-off as at 30 June 2014. Increases in the allowance for impairment are based on loss events 
as disclosed in note 27(c). 

Loans and advances consist of five interest free loans to local councils and were recognised at the face value up to 
30 June 2011, when formal agreements were established and signed.  As per AASB 139 Financial Instruments 
Recognition and Measurement, from 2011, each loan was then measured at fair value and amortised over the life 
of the loan using the effective interest method.  The market value is determined by discounting future cash flows 
using the Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) yield curve at the date of loan inception. Terms are as recorded 
in individual loan agreements that range from five to fifteen years. 

Other debtors generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of the department and are 
recognised at their assessed values. No interest is charged and no security is obtained. 

(j) Acquisitions of assets 

Actual cost is used for the initial recording of all non-current physical and intangible asset acquisitions. Cost is 
determined as the value given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition. These costs include all 
other costs incurred in getting the assets ready for use, such as architects' fees and engineering design fees. 
However, any training costs are expensed as incurred. 

Where assets are received free of charge from a Queensland government entity (whether as a result of a 
machinery-of-Government change or other involuntary transfer), the assets are recognised at the gross carrying 
amount in the books of the transferor immediately prior to the transfer, together with any accumulated depreciation. 

Assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, other than from an involuntary transfer from a Queensland 
Government entity, are recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition in accordance with AASB 116 
Property, Plant and Equipment. 
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(k) Property, plant and equipment 

Items of property, plant and equipment with a cost or other value equal to or in excess of the following thresholds 
are recognised for financial reporting purposes in the year of acquisition: 

Infrastructure $10,000
Land $1
Plant and equipment $5,000 

Items with a lesser value are expensed in the year of acquisition. 

(l) Revaluations of non-current physical and intangible assets 

Infrastructure and land are measured at fair value in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment, 
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement and Queensland Treasury and Trade's Non-Current Asset Policies for the 
Queensland Public Sector. These assets are reported at their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of 
valuation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses where applicable. 

In respect of the above mentioned asset classes, the cost of items acquired during the financial year has been 
judged by management of the department to materially represent their fair value at the end of the reporting period. 

Plant and equipment is measured at cost in accordance with the Queensland Treasury and Trade’s Non-Current 
Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector.  Capital works in progress are measured at cost.  All direct and, 
where reliably attributable, indirect costs relating to constructed infrastructure are recorded as work in progress. 
The carrying amounts for these asset classes at cost should not materially differ from their fair value. 

Property, plant and equipment classes measured at fair value (refer above) are revalued on an annual basis, either 
by appraisals undertaken by an independent professional valuer or internal expert, or by the use of appropriate and 
relevant indices. For financial reporting purposes, the revaluation process is managed by the department’s Chief 
Finance Officer, who determines the specific revaluation practices and procedures in consultation with asset 
managers.  

The department has an Audit and Risk Management Committee that review the revaluation processes. 

Revaluations using independent professional valuer or internal expert appraisals are undertaken at least once 
every five years. However, if a particular asset class experiences significant and volatile changes in fair value (that 
is where indicators suggest that the value of the class of asset may have changed by 20 per cent or more since the 
previous reporting period), it is subject to revaluation in the reporting period, where practicable, regardless of the 
timing of previous such method of revaluation. 

The fair values reported by the department are based on appropriate valuation techniques that maximise the use of 
available and relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs, refer to note 1(m).  

Where assets have not been specifically appraised in the reporting period, their previous valuations are materially 
kept up-to-date via the application of relevant indices. Where indices are used in the revaluation process the 
department ensures that the application of such indices would result in a valid estimation of the asset’s fair value at 
reporting date.  At year end, management assesses the relevance and suitability of indices used. 

Early in the reporting period, the department reviewed all fair value methodologies in light of the new principles in 
AASB 13, no changes were made to methodologies. 

Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the asset revaluation surplus of the 
appropriate class, except to the extent it reverses a re-valuation decrement for the class previously recognised as 
an expense. A decrease in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense, to the extent it exceeds 
the balance, if any, in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset class. 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount of the 
asset and any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 

Materiality concepts under AASB 1031 Materiality, are considered in determining whether the difference between 
the carrying amount and the fair value of an asset is material. 

Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate. 

(m) Fair Value Measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) 
regardless of whether that price is directly derived from observable inputs or estimated using another valuation 
technique. 
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(m) Fair Value Measurement (continued) 

Observable inputs are publicly available data that are relevant to the characteristics of the assets/liabilities being 
valued. Observable inputs used by the department include, but are not limited to, published sales data for land. 

Unobservable inputs are data, assumptions and judgements that are not available publicly, but are relevant to the 
characteristics of the assets/liabilities being valued. Significant unobservable inputs used by the department 
include, but are not limited to, subjective adjustments made to observable data to take account of the 
characteristics of the department’s assets/liabilities, internal records of recent construction costs (and/or estimates 
of such costs) for assets' characteristics/functionality, and assessments of physical condition and remaining useful 
life. Unobservable inputs are used to the extent that sufficient relevant and reliable observable inputs are not 
available for similar assets/liabilities. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate 
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

All assets and liabilities of the department for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements, 
are categorised within the following fair value hierarchy, based on the data and assumptions used in the most 
recent specific appraisals: 

• level 1 – represents fair value measurements that reflect unadjusted, quoted market prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities;

• level 2 – represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from inputs (other than quoted
prices included within level 1) that are observable, either directly or indirectly; and

• level 3 – represents fair value measurements that are substantially derived from unobservable inputs.

None of the department’s valuations of assets or liabilities are eligible for categorisation into level 1 of the fair value 
hierarchy. As 2013-14 is the first year of application of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement by the department, there 
were no transfers of assets between fair value hierarchy levels during the period. 

More specific fair value information about the department’s Property, Plant and Equipment is outlined in note 17 
and Administered Land in note 28(e). 

(n) Intangible assets 

Intangible assets with a cost or other value greater than $100,000 are recognised in the financial statements, items 
with a lesser value being expensed. Each intangible asset is amortised over its estimated useful life to the 
department less any anticipated residual value. The residual value is zero for all of the department's intangible 
assets. 

It has been determined that there is not an active market for any of the department's intangible assets. As such, the 
assets are recognised and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

No intangible assets have been classified as held for sale, or form part of a disposal group held for sale. 

Costs associated with the development of computer software have been capitalised and are amortised on a 
straight-line basis over the period of expected benefit to the department.  

There are no intangible assets recorded in the department’s financial statements. 

(o) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant, equipment 

Land is not depreciated or amortised as it has an unlimited useful life. 

Infrastructure is depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the revalued amount of each asset, less its 
estimated residual value where applicable, progressively over its estimated useful life to the department. 

Plant and equipment, is depreciated on a straight-line basis so as to allocate the net cost of each asset 
progressively over its estimated useful life to the department. 

Assets under construction (work-in-progress) are not depreciated until they reach service delivery capacity. Service 
delivery capacity relates to when construction is complete and the asset is first put to use or is installed ready for 
use in accordance with its intended application. These assets are then reclassified to the relevant classes within 
property, plant and equipment. 

Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components 
are assigned useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate and are depreciated accordingly. 

Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or service potential of an asset is capitalised and 
the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset to the department. 
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(o) Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant, equipment (continued) 

For each class of depreciable and amortisable asset, the following rates are used: 

2014 2013
Class Rates % Rates % 
Infrastructure 1-10% 1-10%
Plant and equipment: 
 Computer equipment 33% 20-25% 
 Office equipment 20% 20% 

(p) Impairment of non-current assets 

All non-current physical assets are assessed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. If an indicator of 
possible impairment exists, the department determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the 
asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. 

The asset's recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost. 

An impairment loss is expensed immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the asset is 
carried at a revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset 
against the asset revaluation surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised 
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A 
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase to the extent that it reverses write-
downs of previously impaired revaluation increments. Refer also note 1(l). 

(q) Leases 

A distinction is made in the financial statements between finance leases that effectively transfer from the lessor to 
the lessee substantially all risks and benefits incidental to ownership, and operating leases, under which the lessor 
retains substantially all risks and benefits. 

The department has not entered into any finance leases as a lessee. 

Operating lease payments are representative of the pattern of benefits derived from the leased assets and are 
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

(r) Payables 

Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods and services ordered and are measured at the agreed 
purchase/contract price, gross of applicable trade and other discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are 
generally settled on 30-day terms unless otherwise specified by the creditor. 

(s) Financial instruments 

Recognition 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position when the department 
becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 

Classification 
Financial instruments are classified and measured as follows: 

- Cash and cash equivalents — held at fair value through Statement of Comprehensive Income; 
- Receivables — held at amortised cost; and 
- Payables — held at amortised cost. 

The department does not enter into transactions for speculative purposes, nor for hedging. Apart from cash and 
cash equivalents, the department holds no financial assets classified at fair value through the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. 

All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments held by 
the department are included in note 27. 
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(t) Employee benefits 

Employer superannuation contributions, annual leave levies and long service leave levies are regarded as 
employee benefits.  

Payroll tax and workers' compensation insurance are a consequence of employing employees, but are not counted 
in an employee's total remuneration package. They are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as 
employee related expenses. 

Wages, salaries and sick leave 
Wages and salaries due but unpaid at reporting date are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position at 
current salary rates.  

As the department expects such liabilities to be wholly settled within 12 months of reporting date, the liabilities are 
recognised at undiscounted amounts. 

Prior history indicates that on average, sick leave taken in the reporting period is less than the entitlement accrued. 
This is expected to continue in future periods. Accordingly, it is unlikely that existing accumulated entitlements will 
be used by employees and no liability for unused sick leave entitlements is recognised. 

As sick leave is non-vesting, an expense is recognised for this leave as it is taken. 

Annual leave 
The Queensland Government's Annual Leave Central Scheme (ALCS) became operational on 30 June 2008 for 
departments, commercialised business units and shared service providers. Under the scheme, a levy is made on 
the department to cover the cost of employees' annual leave (including leave loading and on-costs). The levies are 
expensed in the period in which they are payable. Amounts paid to employees for annual leave are claimed from 
the scheme quarterly in arrears.  

No provision for annual leave has been recognised in the department’s financial statements as the liability is held 
on a whole-of-government basis and reported in those financial statements prepared pursuant to AASB 1049 
Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting. 

Long service leave 
Under the Queensland Government’s Long Service Leave Scheme (LSLS), a levy is made on the department to 
cover the cost of employees’ long service leave. Levies are expensed in the period in which they are paid or 
payable. Amounts paid to employees for long service leave are claimed from the scheme quarterly in arrears. 

No provision for long service leave is recognised in the department’s financial statements as the liability is held on 
a whole-of-government basis and reported in the financial statements prepared pursuant to AASB 1049 Whole of 
Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting. 

Superannuation 
Employer superannuation contributions are paid to QSuper, the superannuation scheme for Queensland 
Government employees, at rates determined by the Treasurer on advice of the State Actuary. Contributions are 
expensed in the period in which they are paid or payable. The department's obligation is limited to its contribution 
to QSuper. 

The QSuper scheme has defined benefit and defined contribution categories. The liability for defined benefits is 
held on a whole-of-Government basis and reported in those financial statements prepared pursuant to AASB 1049 
Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting. 

Key management personnel and remuneration 
Key management personnel and remuneration disclosures are made in accordance with section 5 of the Financial 
Reporting Requirements for Queensland Government Agencies issued by Queensland Treasury and Trade. Refer 
to note 8. 

(u) Allocation of revenues and expenses from ordinary activities to corporate services 

The department allocates revenues and expenses attributable to corporate services to major departmental 
services based on full-time equivalent employees. These are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
by Major Departmental Services. 

(v) Insurance 

The department's non-current physical assets and other risks are insured through the Queensland Government 
Insurance Fund, premiums being paid on a risk assessment basis. In addition, the department pays premiums to 
WorkCover Queensland in respect of its obligations for employee compensation. 
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(w) Services received free of charge or for nominal value 

Contributions of services are recognised only if the services would have been purchased if they had not been 
donated and their fair value can be measured reliably. Where this is the case, an equal amount is recognised as 
revenue and expense. 

(x) Contributed equity 

Non-reciprocal transfers of assets and liabilities between wholly-owned Queensland State Public Sector entities, as 
a result of machinery-of-Government changes, are adjusted to Contributed Equity in accordance with Interpretation 
1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities. Appropriations for equity adjustments 
are similarly designated. 

(y) Taxation 

The department is a State body as defined under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 and is exempt from 
Commonwealth taxation with the exception of Fringe Benefits Tax (FBT) and Goods and Services Tax (GST). FBT 
and GST are the only taxes accounted for by the department. GST credits receivable from, and GST payable to the 
Australian Taxation Office (ATO), are recognised, refer to note 15. 

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the ATO. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset, or, as part of the expense. 

Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included. 

Cash flows are included in the Statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as 
operating cash flows. 

(z) Issue of financial statements 

The financial statements are authorised for issue by the Director-General and Chief Finance Officer at the date of 
signing the Management Certificate. 

(aa) Accounting estimates and judgements 

The preparation of financial statements necessarily requires the determination and use of certain critical accounting 
estimates, assumptions and management judgements that have the potential to cause a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Such estimates, judgements and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant.  

Estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following notes: 
- Valuation of property, plant and equipment note, refer note 17; 
- Contingencies, refer note 25; and 
- Depreciation and amortisation, refer note 1(o) and 11. 

(ab) Rounding and comparatives 

Amounts included in the financial statements are in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest $1,000 
or where the amount is $500 or less, to zero, unless disclosure of the full amount is specifically required. 

Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current 
reporting period. 

(ac) New and revised accounting standards 

The department did not voluntarily change any of its accounting policies during 2013-14. The only Australian 
Accounting Standard changes applicable for the first time as from 2013-14 that have had a significant impact on the 
department's financial statements are those arising from AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement, as explained below.  

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement became effective from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013. 
AASB 13 sets out a new definition of “fair value”, as well as new principles to be applied when determining the fair 
value of assets and liabilities. The new requirements will apply to all of the department's assets and liabilities 
(excluding leases) that are measured and/or disclosed at fair value or another measurement based on fair value. 
The impacts of AASB 13 relate to the fair value measurement methodologies used, and financial statement 
disclosures made in respect of, such assets and liabilities. 
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(ac) New and revised accounting standards (continued) 

The department reviewed its fair value methodologies (including instructions to valuers, data used and 
assumptions made) for all items of property, plant and equipment measured at fair value to determine whether 
those methodologies comply with AASB 13, no changes were made to methodologies. 

AASB 13 has required an increased amount of information to be disclosed in relation to fair value measurements 
for both assets and liabilities. For those fair value measurements of assets or liabilities that substantially are based 
on data that is not 'observable' (i.e. accessible outside the department), the amount of information disclosed has 
significantly increased. Note 1(m) explains some of the principles underpinning the additional fair value information 
disclosed. Most of this additional information is set out in note 17 Property, plant and equipment and note 28 (e) 
Schedule of administered items land fair value measurements. 

A revised version of AASB 119 Employee Benefits became effective from reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2013. As the department does not directly recognise any employee benefit liabilities, refer to Note 1(t), 
the only implications for the department were the revised concept of ‘termination benefits’, and the revised 
recognition criteria for termination benefit liabilities. If termination benefits meet the timeframe criterion for ‘short-
term employee benefits’, they will be measured according to the AASB 119 requirements for ‘short-term employee 
benefits’. Otherwise, termination benefits need to be measured according to the AASB 119 requirements for ‘other 
long-term employee benefits’. Under the revised standard, the recognition and measurement of employer 
obligations for ‘other long-term employee benefits’ will need to be accounted for according to most of the 
requirements for defined benefit plans. 

The revised AASB 119 includes changed criteria for accounting for employee benefits as ‘short-term employee 
benefits’.   However as the department is a member of the Queensland Government central schemes for annual 
leave and long service leave, this change in criteria has no impact on the department’s financial statements as the 
employer liability is held by the central scheme.  The revised AASB 119 also includes changed requirements for the 
measurement of employer liabilities/assets arising from defined benefit plans, and the measurement and 
presentation of changes in such liabilities/assets.   

The department makes employer superannuation contributions only to the QSuper defined benefit plan, and the 
corresponding QSuper employer benefit obligation is held by the State.  Therefore, those changes to AASB 119 will 
have no impact on the department. 

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards became effective for reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2013.  AASB 1053 establishes a differential reporting framework for those entities that 
prepare general purpose financial statements, consisting of two Tiers of reporting requirements – Australian 
Accounting Standards (commonly referred to as ‘Tier 1’), and the Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced 
Disclosure Requirements (commonly referred to as ‘Tier 2’).  Tier 1 requirements comprise the full range of AASB 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements that are currently applicable to reporting 
entities in Australia.  The only difference between Tier 1 and Tier 2 requirements is that Tier 2 requires fewer 
disclosures than Tier 1. 

Pursuant to AASB 1053, public sector entities like the department may adopt Tier 2 requirements for their general 
purpose financial statements.  However, AASB 1053 acknowledges the power of a regulator to require application 
of the Tier 1 requirements.  In the case of the department, Queensland Treasury and Trade is a regulator.  
Queensland Treasury and Trade have advised that its policy decision is to require adoption of Tier 1 reporting by all 
Queensland Government departments (including the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience) and statutory bodies that are consolidated into the whole-of-Government financial statements.  
Therefore, the release of AASB 1053 and associated amending standards has had no impact on the department. 

The department is not permitted to early adopt a new or amended accounting standard ahead of the specified 
commencement date unless approval is obtained from Queensland Treasury and Trade. Consequently, the 
department has not applied any Australian Accounting Standards or Interpretations that have been issued but are 
not yet effective. The department will apply these standards and interpretations in accordance with their respective 
commencement dates. 

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the only significant impacts of new or amended Australian 
Accounting Standards with future commencement dates are set out below. 

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting applies from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.  The department 
will need to include in its 2014–15 financial statements the original budgeted figures from the Income Statement, 
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, and Cash Flow Statement as published in the 2014–15 
Queensland Government’s Service Delivery Statements.  The budgeted figures will need to be presented 
consistently with the corresponding (actuals) financial statements, and will be accompanied by explanations of 
major variances between the actual amounts and the corresponding budgeted figures. 
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(ac) New and revised accounting standards (continued) 

In addition, the department will need to include the original budgeted information for major classes of administered 
income and expenses, and major classes of administered assets and liabilities. This budgeted information will need 
to be presented consistently with the corresponding (actuals) administered information, and will be accompanied by 
explanations of major variances between the actual amounts and the corresponding budgeted financial information. 

The following new and revised standards apply as from reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014: 

• AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements;
• AASB 11 Joint Arrangements;
• AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities;
• AASB 127 (revised) Separate Financial Statements;
• AASB 128 (revised) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures;
• AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint

Arrangements Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 &
1038 and Interpretations 5, 9, 16 & 17]; and

• AASB 2013-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian Implementation Guidance for
Not-for-Profit Entities – Control and Structured Entities.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements redefines and clarifies the concept of control of another entity, and is 
the basis for determining which entities should be consolidated into an entity’s financial statements.  AASB 2013-8 
applies the various principles in AASB 10 for determining whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity.  The 
department assessed the nature of its relationships with other entities, including entities that are not currently 
consolidated and it was determined the department does not have control over any entities. 

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements deals with the concept of joint control and sets out new principles for determining the 
type of joint arrangement that exists, which in turn dictates the accounting treatment.  The new categories of joint 
arrangements under AASB 11 are more aligned to the actual rights and obligations of the parties to the 
arrangement.  The department has assessed its arrangements with other entities to determine whether a joint 
arrangement exists in terms of AASB 11. Based on present arrangements, no joint arrangements exist. However, if 
a joint arrangement does arise in future, the department will need to follow the relevant accounting treatment 
specified in either AASB 11 or the revised AASB 128, depending on the nature of the joint arrangement.  

AASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 
139, 1023 & 1038 and Interpretations 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] will become effective for reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2017. The main impacts of these standards on the department are that they will change the 
requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with department’s financial assets.  
Under the new requirements, financial assets will be more simply classified according to whether they are 
measured at amortised cost or fair value.  

Pursuant to AASB 9 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, financial assets can only be measured at amortised 
cost if two conditions are met. One of these conditions is that the asset must be held within a business model with 
the objective to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows. The other condition is that the contractual 
terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
the principal amount outstanding. 

The department has commenced reviewing the measurement of its financial assets against the new AASB 9 
classification and measurement requirements. However, as the classification of financial assets at the date of initial 
application of AASB 9 will depend on the facts and circumstances existing at that date, the department's 
conclusions will not be confirmed until closer to that time. The department has a number of interest-free loans that 
are currently recorded at amortised cost.   

These need further assessment as to whether they meet the conditions for being measured at amortised cost.  At 
this stage, and assuming no change in the other types of transactions the department enters into, it is not expected 
that any of the department's other financial assets will meet the criteria in AASB 9 to be measured at amortised 
cost.  

Therefore, as from the 2017–18 financial statements, all of the department's financial assets are expected to be 
required to be measured at fair value, and classified accordingly, instead of the measurement classifications 
presently used in notes 1(s) and 27. The same classification will be used for net gains/losses recognised in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of those financial assets. In the case of the department's current 
receivables, as they are short-term in nature, the carrying amount is expected to be a reasonable approximation of 
fair value. 

The department will not need to restate comparative figures for financial instruments on adopting AASB 9 as from 
2017-18.  However, changed disclosure requirements will apply from that time.  A number of one-off disclosures will 
be required in the 2017-18 financial statements to explain the impact of adopting AASB 9.  Assuming no change in 
the types of financial instruments that the department enters into, the department does not anticipate any 
significant disclosure impacts. 
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(ac) New and revised accounting standards (continued) 

All other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations with future commencement dates are either not 
applicable to the department’s activities, or have no material impact on the department. 

(ad) Major Departmental Services 

Local Government 

The Local Government service area exists to ensure local governments are able to make effective decisions that 
bring increased economic prosperity and social cohesion to their local government areas.  The department wants 
all local governments to have the necessary autonomy, authority, capacity and resilience to deliver the best 
outcomes for their community. 

Community Recovery and Resilience 

The Community Recovery and Resilience service area was established in February 2013.  It facilitates Government 
agencies working together to build community resilience based on an all hazards approach in disaster ravaged 
areas.  Resilience focus areas will include examination of the feasibility of levees and dams, natural safeguards and 
community infrastructure such as community based, and led, support plans. 

(ae) Machinery-of-Government changes 

2013-14 changes 
The Public Services Departmental Arrangements Notice (No. 8) 2013, dated 1 November 2013, transferred the 
responsibility for administering the Natural Disaster, Relief and Recovery Arrangements and the Natural Disaster 
Resilience Program from the Public Safety Business Agency (PSBA) to the department. As a result, appropriation 
revenue, ten positions and assets were transferred to the department. 

Furthermore, as endorsed by the Police and Community Safety Review Implementation Committee, the Get Ready 
Queensland Program was transferred from the PSBA to the department and agreement between the Director-
General of the department and the Chief Executive Officer of the PSBA for the transfer of appropriation revenue 
and the grant program occurred, effective 1 February 2014. 

The following assets have transferred to the department effective 1 November 2013: 

PSBA Total
$'000  $'000 

Assets 
   Cash and cash equivalents 7,852 7,852 

Total assets 7,852  7,852 

Net assets 7,852 7,852 

Increases in assets have been accounted for in contributed equity as disclosed in the Statement of Changes In 
Equity. 

2012-13 changes 
On 4 February 2013, as a result of the Administrative Arrangements Amendment Order (No.1) 2013, the 
Department of Local Government was renamed the Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and 
Resilience and the Queensland Reconstruction Authority was transferred from the Minister for State Development, 
Infrastructure and Planning to the Minister for Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience.  The 
department receives administered funding which is paid to the authority as grant funding.  For departmental 
administered financial statement purposes, the transfer is deemed to have occurred from the first day of the month 
following the gazettal date, that is, from 1 March 2013. 

The Authority is a statutory body under the Queensland Reconstruction Authority Act 2011 and prepares separate 
financial statements. 
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Budgeted appropriation revenue for services
Transfer from Public Safety Business Agency
Lapsed appropriation revenue for services
Total appropriation revenue for services receipts (cash)
Less: Opening balance of appropriation revenue receivable
Plus: Closing balance of appropriation revenue receivable
Net appropriation revenue
Less: Deferred appropriation refundable to QTT expense
Plus: Deferred appropriation refundable to QTT expense

Appropriation revenue for services recognised in Statement of comprehensive income

Budgeted equity adjustment appropriation
Lapsed equity adjustment

Equity adjustment recognised in Contributed equity

3. User charges and fees
Event revenue
Professional services
Property rental
Total

4. Grants and other contributions
Grants - Commonwealth
Grants - Queensland Government departments #
Grant refunds from prior year
Goods and services received below fair value
Other
Total

5. Interest
Program bank accounts
Local Government Loans
Total 

6. Other revenue
Sundry
Total 

7. Employee expenses
Employee benefits
Wages and salaries
Employer superannuation contributions *
Annual leave levy *
Long service leave levy *
Termination benefits
Other employee benefits

Employee related expenses
Payroll tax *
Workers compensation premium *
Other employee related expenses *
Total

* Refer to note 1(t)

Number of employees:
2014

- 288

2

142,394 126,315

22

62
1,540 153

787
61

(97,117)

3,685

817

978

-

(16,767)

3,875

(94)

(62,443)

$'000 

5,742

(626)

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

223,526

$'000 

-

36

2014 

21,220

136,652

Reconciliation of payments from consolidated fund to equity adjustment recognised in Contributed 
equity

4,380

2,088

4

27,301

143,020

15,364

-

recognised in Statement of comprehensive income

125,689

833

10,534

176,348

6

626

126,409

2013 

(5,856)

-

22,747

16
951

2. Reconciliation of payments from consolidated fund to appropriation revenue for services

-

The number of employees as at 30 June, including both full-time employees and part-time employees, measured on a full-time equivalent 
basis (reflecting Minimum Obligatory Human Resource Information (MOHRI)) is: 

5

1,301

12

53

18

1,079

12,538
76

532

2013

1,130

182
867

91

564

101111

12,980

# Included in revenue from grants for 2013-14 is a non-reciprocal grant received from the former Department of Community Safety (DCS) 
for the Get Ready Resilience Initiative Program of $1.8 million. These funds were forwarded to local councils to assist them with program 
development, marketing and funding of community resilience-building events during the Get Ready Week. The remaining non-reciprocal 
grant contributions are a combination of grants from the former DCS, Local Government Association of Queensland and key Not for Profit 
recovery partners for the GIVIT (Give It) organisation as a trial program totalling $187,000 in 2013-14. These grants have been recognised 
in their entirety upon receipt as the department has met the grant agreement's conditions entitling it to receipt of the funding.

568

6

8,455

848

3
3

9,662

504

205

1,255

14
97

6

- 54 -



Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience

8. Key management personnel and remuneration expenses

(a)  Key management personnel

(b)  Remuneration expenses

Remuneration packages for key management personnel comprise the following components:
- Short-term employee benefits which include:

·

·

- Long-term employee expenses include amounts expensed in respect of long service leave.
- Post-employment expenses include amounts expensed in respect of employer superannuation obligations.
-

1 July 2013 - 30 June 2014

Monetary 
Expenses

$'000
322
218
215

755 

Non-
monetary 
Expenses

379 

19 

74 

Termination 
Benefits

Post 
Employment 

Expenses
$'000

24 

18 

Position (date resigned if applicable)
Director-General
Deputy Director-General Local Government
Deputy Director-General Strategy Governance and 
Resilience

non-monetary benefits - consisting of provision of vehicle and car parking benefits together with fringe benefits tax applicable to the 
benefit.

For the 2013-14 year, remuneration of key management personnel increased by 2.2% in accordance with government policy.

Deputy Director-
General Strategy, 
Governance and 
Resilience

5 
5 

31 

Total

$'000

Total 
Expenses

$'000
-
-
-

0 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

Date appointed to 
position (Date 
resigned from 

position)

Appointed 28 May 
2010

Position

$'000
9 

The Director-General is responsible for the efficient, effective 
and economic administration of the agency to facilitate 
effective local government administration and to enhance 
community resilience to natural disasters. 

Appointed 4 
February 2013

The following disclosures focus on the expenses incurred by the department during the respective reporting period, that is attributable to 
key management positions. Therefore, the amounts disclosed reflect expenses recognised in the Statement of comprehensive income.

239 

865 

-

Short-term Employee 
Expenses

18 

salaries, allowances and leave entitlements earned and expensed for the entire year or for that part of the year during which the 
employee occupied the specified position.

Responsibilities

The Deputy Director-General has responsibility for grants 
program implementation and review including capacity 
building, financial sustainability and the regional office 
network.

246 

Contract classification and 
appointment authority

SES4 / s122 Public Service Act 
2008

CEO / s122 Public Service Act 
2008

SES3 / s122 Public Service Act 
2008

Appointed 8 April 
2013

The remuneration policy for the department’s key management personnel is set by the Queensland Public Service Commission as 
provided for under the Public Service Act 2008 . The remuneration and other terms of employment for the key management personnel are 
specified in employment contracts. The contracts provide for benefits including motor vehicles.

Director-General

$'000
18 

-

Current Incumbents

The following details for key management personnel include those positions that had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the department during 2013-14. Further information on these positions can be found in the body of the annual 
report under the section relating to Executive Management.

Deputy Director-
General Local 
Government

The Deputy Director-General leads the Strategy, Governance 
and Resilience arm to support the workforce in delivering on 
objectives and to develop and implement strategies to 
enhance community resilience to natural disasters.

Termination benefits are not provided for within individual contracts of employment. Contracts of employment provide for notice periods 
or payment in lieu of notice on termination, regardless of the reason for termination.

Long-term 
Employee 
Expenses
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8. Key management personnel and remuneration expenses (continued)

(b)  Remuneration expenses

1 July 2012 - 30 June 2013

Monetary 
Expenses

$'000
68

102

145

-

118

79

55

567 
* Officers acting in positions have occupied two roles within the financial year.

(c)  Performance Payments 

-

-

-

-
-

No performance payments were paid or payable to key management personal in the 2012-13 or 2013-14 financial year.

9. Supplies and services
Property and Building services
Computer operating costs
Consultants and contractors
Service Level Agreements
Marketing and public relations
Motor vehicles expense
Supplies and consumables
Telecommunications
Travel
Other
Total

75
89

9,935

197

445
109

118

Deputy Director-
General Strategy 
Governance and 
Resilience

01/07/2012 - 17/08/2012Director-General
Position

04/02/2013 - 30/06/2013

01/07/2012 - 06/07/2012 - 

2 

1 

1 08/04/2013 - 30/06/2013

07/07/2012 - 19/08/2012
02/02/2013 - 30/06/2013

60

10,582

2014 2013

18

8

13

The remuneration package for the Director-General includes a potential performance payment of up to a maximum of $46,643.  Eligibility 
for such a performance payment is conditional on the achievement of objectives that are documented in that position's performance 
agreement.

Public service CEOs have part of their total remuneration package placed “at risk” and paid only if they meet or exceed the agreed 
performance standards. The chief executive performance evaluation process comprises:

As at the date of management certification of these financial statements, the eligibility to a performance payment for the Director-General 
in respect of the 2013-14 financial year had not yet been confirmed. With respect to the process to determine eligibility, recommendations 
are yet to be made by the Chief Executive Performance Evaluation Committee to the Premier. Therefore, any performance payment 
approved will be reported as an expense within 2014-15.

*Deputy Director-
General Local
Government

Acting Director-General

-

-

03/09/2012 - 01/02/2013Acting Deputy Director-
General Local 
Government

Total

1,158

62

241

132

89

61

Dates

$'000 

5

57

$'000

2 

240

796

76
11

3,847

319

- 

6 

- 

- 

1 

- 

Non-
monetary 
Expenses

Short-term Employee 
Expenses

Long-term 
Employee 
Expenses

$'000
7

1,126

$'000

-

240

-

*Acting Director-
General

3,141
4,486

167

1

12

20/08/2012 - 01/02/2013

Termination 
Benefits

$'000
-
-

7 881

115

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

1 

Total 
Expenses

$'000

3 

$'000 

- 

3,818
86

135

reporting on end of year achievement and self-assessment by each chief executive against their performance agreement/intended 
outcomes;
analysis by the Commission Chief Executive (Public Service Commission), the Under Treasurer (Queensland Treasury and Trade) and 
the Director-General (Department of the Premier and Cabinet) of relevant performance data;
a rigorous, independent and objective assessment of CEOs performance at the end of each financial year using, amongst other things, 
information provided from above two steps.  This performance assessment is undertaken by a Chief Executive Performance Evaluation 
Committee (CEPEC);
recommendations from the CEPEC to the Premier; and
the Premier’s ultimate discretion regarding whether the CEO will be paid an At Risk Component payment and, if so, how much.

435

10 

Post 
Employment 

Expenses

Associate Deputy 
Director-General Local 
Government
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10. Grants and subsidies
Transfer of non-current physical assets to local councils
Local councils
Charities and community groups
Private enterprise and industry
Queensland Government departments
Contributions
Total 

11. Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation were incurred in respect of:
Infrastructure
Plant and equipment
Total

12. Impairment losses
Trade receivables
Total

13. Other expenses
Sponsorships
External audit fees *
Insurance premiums - QGIF**
Losses from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gifts
Other
Total

14. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank
Imprest accounts
Total

15. Receivables
Current
Trade debtors
Less: allowance for impairment loss

GST receivable
GST payable

Annual leave reimbursements
Long service leave reimbursements
Appropriation revenue receivable
Loans and advances
Interest receivable
Other
Total

Non-current
Loans and advances
Total

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

1,1031,103
8

1,824

349

8,777

601 

38

Refer to note 27(c) Financial instruments (Credit risk exposure) for an analysis of movements in the allowance for impairment loss.

1

1

(3)

7,663

7

(1)

3,767

74 

217

1,289

7,663

(120)

277

352

1

Total cash includes the Regional Flood Mitigation Program (RFMP) account.

573

14

13,946

1,025

-  

1,066

113,173

291

239 

7,092

* Total audit fees paid to the Queensland Audit Office relating to the 2013–14 financial statements are estimated to be  $115,000 (2012-13
$112,000). There are no non-audit services included in this amount. The 2012-13 amount is higher due to the audit impact of machinery-of-
Government changes.

9

1,824

31

-

Departmental bank accounts, excluding the RFMP account, are grouped within the whole-of-Government set-off arrangement with the 
Queensland Treasury Corporation and do not earn interest on surplus funds. Interest earned on the aggregate set-off arrangement 
balance accrues to the Consolidated Fund. 

29,477

5,742

2,522

36,804 -  

1,288

115

64 

51 

1,013            308

7,977

1,072

160,775 108,176

100,471        

23

35 

53

** Certain losses of public property are insured by the Queensland Government Insurance Fund (QGIF). No claims were made upon QGIF 
to date during 2013–14.

-

29,478

5

337

-

-

7,092

115

The Under Treasurer has approved an overdraft limit of $30 million for the department's controlled bank account. There is no overdraft 
interest charged on this facility.  This facility was undrawn at 30 June and is available for use in the next reporting period.

1

-  

13,947

8

454 
-  

7,200            

-  

1,063

1
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16. Property, plant and equipment
Infrastructure - at fair value
Gross value
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Plant and equipment - at cost
Gross cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Capital work in progress - at cost
Total

Reconciliation

Carrying amount at 1 July 2013
Acquisitions
Transfers to local councils 10
Transfers between classes
Depreciation
Carrying amount at 30 June 2014

Carrying amount at 1 July 2012

-
Acquisitions
Disposals

Depreciation
Carrying amount at 30 June 2013

No assets have been pledged as security for any liabilities by the department.

17. Fair value measurements

As at 30 June 2014

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

-

$'000 $'000
-   

$'000

11

The below information categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3  in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value 
Measurement . The department does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as 
level 1 in accordance with the fair value hierarchy as stated in policy note 1(m).  

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, 
and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is 
included in level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3, in 
accordance with the fair value hierarchy as stated in policy note 1(m). This is the case for the department’s infrastructure assets, which 
are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar or identical assets.  These assets are valued using a combination 
of observable and unobservable inputs.

Prior year machinery-of-Government 
adjustments

PP&E Infrastructure

Revaluation Increments 1,615 -

(41)

Level 3

Trade receivables and payables

$'000
-   
-   -   

41,227 
41,227 

(1,025)
1,615

$'000

20

(36,804) -

52,581

-

52,581

Infrastructure

-

13
(7)

75,155

Plant and 
equipment

11,341

42,293

Total

75,155

- (1,072)

-

$'000$'000

(41)

$'000

(38)

Capital 
work in 

progress

-

$'000

(17,163)
41,227

925 19,443

The department has one item of plant and equipment with a written down value of zero still being used in the provision of services.

59,456

42,293

59,456

$'000

15,304-
(36,804)

62,071

(18,228)

(21)
41

-

15,304

The table below presents the department’s assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2014. Comparative 
information has not been provided as allowed by the transitional provisions of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Due the short-term nature of trade receivables and trade payables, their carrying amounts are assumed to approximate their fair values, 
and are classified as level 2 in accordance with the fair value hierarchy as stated in policy note 1(m).  

(834)

75,155

(36,804)

11,341

32,842

11
41,227

13,406

Capital 
work in 

progress

-

13,399

$'000

20

The carrying value of these loans includes principal and accrued interest. The carrying amounts are not materially different to fair value, as 
the terms of the borrowings are close to current market terms. 

41,703

41

13

(834)

32,842

-

-

32,842

42,293

20

The department holds various loan receivable balances to Local Councils.

Total

Level 1 Level 2

Total

Plant and 
equipment

36,804 -

7

(1,066)

(1,063)

(28)

Notes

Council loans

Infrastructure
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17. Fair value measurements  (continued)
Infrastructure 

Valuation processes

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

The department’s valuation policies and procedures are overseen by the Asset, Risk and Management Committee as set out by the Chief 
Finance Officer.  They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an analysis of movement in fair value and other relevant 
information. The department’s current policy for the valuation of property, plant and equipment is set out in note 1(l) and 1(m) respectively.  

The department's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 
There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. For transfers out of level 3 
measurements see below. 

Remaining Useful life
Infrastructure 

5 – 100 years

* There were no significant inter-relationships between unobservable inputs that materially affect fair values.

 Relationship of unobservable 
input to fair value 

 The higher the condition rating, 
the lower the fair value. 
 The lower the remaining useful 
life lower the fair value. 

Range or inputs

Transfers between Levels

Description

(36,804)
36,804 

Opening balance 30 June 2013
Depreciation

$'000
Infrastructure

Significant  Unobservable 
Input*

Condition rating 

Closing balance 30 June 2014

The were no gains/ (losses) in operations resulting in unrealised gains/ (losses) for assets still held at the end of the reporting period.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 for the period ended 2014.

Level 3 valuation inputs and relationship to fair value
The following table summarises the quantitative information about the significant unobservable inputs used in level 3 fair value 
measurements.

 The higher the discount factor 
the lower the asset valuation. 

Fair value measurement using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

42,293 

The department holds Infrastructure assets located in Far Northern Queensland. These were comprehensively revalued by independent 
valuer SunWater in 2010-11, an industry specialist in bulk water infrastructure construction and management. Due to the specialised 
nature of the assets and lack of observable market data the basis of valuation used is depreciated replacement cost.

In accordance with Queensland Treasury and Trade's Non-Current Asset Policies for the Queensland Public Sector,  management 
assessed infrastructure asset values to determine the fair value of the infrastructure asset class as at 30 June 2012, 30 June 2013 and 30 
June 2014. For all years management considered the Office of Economic and Statistical Research (OESR) Engineering construction, 
Queensland  as the most appropriate index to represent the fair value of the infrastructure assets. For 2013-2014 the index represented an 
increase of less than 2% which was assessed to be immaterial and therefore not applied.

41,227 

(1,066)

Depreciated replacement cost reflects the cost that would be required currently to replace the service capacity of the asset as it currently 
exists.  This is reflective of the cost that would be incurred by a market participant to acquire or construct a substitute asset adjusted for 
comparable utility and obsolescence. 

Due to the use of significant unobservable inputs, in particular the replacement cost, residual value, conditions ratings, remaining useful 
life, and an associated risk adjusted discounts to each of these factors, these asset valuations have been categorised as level 3 in 
accordance with accounting policies. 

Transfers to Local Council’s
Transfers between asset classes

At 30 June 2014 management assessed the assumptions and condition of the assets as applied in the 2010-11 independent valuation.  To 
support this assessment, consideration was given to the SunWater 2010-2020 Water Supply Asset Management Plan which is a long term 
maintenance and replacement plan aimed at keeping the infrastructure assets in good working condition. SunWater maintain the 
infrastructure assets on behalf of the department.

The valuation undertaken determined the fair value of the assets as represented by depreciated current replacement cost, taking into 
consideration a regional weighting and condition assessment.  The valuation was based on a desktop exercise whereby SunWater did not 
undertake a physical inspection but relied on its knowledge as repair and maintenance provider for the infrastructure.  Assets were 
allocated a condition rating, scale of 1 being new and in excellent condition, to a scale of 6 which indicated a failing in operational 
capability.  The majority of the infrastructure assets were allocated a mid-point rating of 3.  In determining replacement cost, reference was 
made to maps, drawings and other reports as available to substantiate units, size and quantities of components and a unit rate was 
applied. The unit rate was determined with reference to industry standards and compared with similar assets owned by SunWater. All 
assumptions, calculations and values were reviewed by civil engineers, Cardno, registered valuers.

Factor of 1 to 6
(1 = Good and 6 = bad)

Industry and geographically 
similar assets based on 
SunWater's owned assets

 The higher the replacement cost 
the higher the fair value. 

Risk adjusted discount factor Low to Extreme

Replacement cost
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18. Payables
Current
Trade creditors
Grants and subsidies payable
Other 
Total

Non-current
Trade creditors
Total

19. Accrued employee benefits
Wages outstanding
Annual leave levy payable
Long service leave levy payable
Other employee entitlements payable
Total

20. Other current and non-current liabilities
Current
Deposits held
Total

Non-current
Deposits held
Total

21. Asset revaluation surplus by class

Balance as at 1 July 2012
Revaluation increments
Balance as at 30 June 2013

Balance as at 1 July 2013
Balance as at 30 June 2014

Operating surplus/(deficit)
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Transfer of non-current physical assets to local councils
Net (gain)/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other non-cash items
Notional interest

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/decrease in receivables
(Increase)/decrease in GST receivable
(Increase)/decrease in annual leave and LSL reimbursement receivables
Increase/(decrease) in payable
Increase/(decrease) in other payable
Increase/(decrease) in accrued employee benefits
Increase/(decrease) in GST payable
Net cash from operating activities

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

88(117)
(430)

(4,011)

6,678

318

(Increase)/decrease in appropriation revenue receivable

685

2

(658)

546

-
601-

$'000 

36,804

(532)

12,889

(761)
411

14,537

-

(37,461)

11,889

(5,742)

(787)

- 18,30318,303

$'000 

1,072

$'000 

2014 

1,615
1,615

$'000 

2013 

-

371

(973)

18,303

The land revaluation surplus is attributable to land revaluation increments in prior years.  Notwithstanding the department does not 
currently hold land that has been revalued, the reserve will remain available for future land revaluation decrements.

22. Reconciliation of operating surplus to net cash from operating activities

1,063

30

$'000 

18,303
19,918
19,918

Land Infrastructure 

30

1,615
18,303

1

-

Total 

537

-

1,615 19,918

492

30

130

730
11,256

-
66

791

73
18,702

2013 
$'000 

941

94

92

2

55

92

2014 

-

6,186

537

$'000 

1,615

5,456

(15)

30
-
-

7,373

922
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23. Non-cash financing and investing activities

24. Commitments for expenditure

(a)  Non-cancellable operating leases 

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years 
Total

(b)  Capital expenditure commitments

Not later than one year
Total

(c)  Grants and subsidies commitments  

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Total

The above commitments for grants and subsidies expenditure are allocated to the following categories:

Charities and community groups
Local councils
Total 

(d)  Other expenditure commitments

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Total

25. Contingencies

(a)  Litigation in progress

Supreme Court
District Court
Total 

(b)  Native title claims

(c)  Guarantees and undertakings

Commitments under operating leases at reporting date are inclusive of anticipated GST and are payable as follows:

1,584
-

2,009

9,203

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

2014 2013
$'000 

2,498

4,198

76,633

1,168

77,603

As at 30 June 2014, approval has been given to various guarantees in accordance with formal agreements to pay the following grants and 
subsidies inclusive of anticipated GST provided certain criteria are met:

Infrastructure capital works in progress capital commitments, inclusive of anticipated GST, contracted for at reporting date but not 
recognised in the accounts are payable as follows:

$'000 

1,033

55

1,879
842 619

4,198

Other expenditure committed at the end of the period but not recognised in the accounts are payable as follows:

77,666

-

-
1 -

In respect of litigation, neither of the matters filed in the courts are for compensation.

2

1,107

The department holds eight bank guarantees totalling $0.911 million as security for the performance and satisfaction of construction 
contracts. Where the conditions of the contract agreements have not been satisfied the department is entitled to draw on these 
guarantees. These guarantees are not recognised on the Statement of financial position.

77,666

1,162

As at 30 June 2014, no determinations affecting the department in relation to native title claims have been made by the National Native 
Title Tribunal.

63

No. of cases No. of cases
2014 2013

1

Assets and liabilities received or donated/transferred by the department and recognised as revenues and expenses are set out in note 4 
and 13 respectively.

1,584

Assets and liabilities received and transferred to the department as a result of machinery-of-Government changes are set out in note 
1(ae).

9,203

At 30 June 2014, the following cases were filed in the courts naming the department as defendant:

126,454

107,808
18,646

126,454

69
126,385

Operating leases are entered into as a means of acquiring access to office accommodation.  Lease payments are fixed, but with 
escalation clauses on which contingent rentals are determined.  No operating leases contain restrictions on financing or other leasing 
activities.

As at June 2014 $943,587 (2012-13: $955,047) was recognised by the department as an expense in the Statement of comprehensive 
Income in respect of operating leases.
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26. Events occurring after balance date

27. Financial instruments

(a)  Categorisation of financial instruments
The department has the following categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

Category
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Total

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Payables 
Total

(b)  Financial risk management

The department measures risk exposure using a variety of methods as follows:

Risk exposure Measurement method
Credit risk Ageing analysis, earnings at risk
Liquidity risk Sensitivity analysis
Market risk Interest rate sensitivity analysis

(c)  Credit risk exposure

No collateral is held as security and no credit enhancements relate to financial assets held by the department.

No financial assets or financial liabilities have been offset and presented net in the Statement of financial position.

18

$'000 

6,723            

2013 
$'000 

14
15

Notes

Financial risk management is implemented pursuant to Queensland Government and departmental policy. These policies focus on the 
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the department. 

All financial risk is managed by the department, under financial arrangements of Queensland Treasury and Trade. 

6,723            

25,377          

2014 

13,947          
11,430          

If no loss events have arisen in respect of a particular debtor or group of debtors, no provision for impairment is made in respect of that 
debtor/group of debtors.  If the department determines that an amount owing by such a debtor does become uncollectible (after 
appropriate range of debt recovery actions), that amount is recognised as a bad debt expense and written-off directly against receivables.  
In other cases where a debt becomes uncollectible but the uncollectible amount exceeds the amount already allowed for impairment of 
that debt, the excess is recognised directly as a bad debt and written-off directly against receivables.

The department manages credit risk through the use of a credit management strategy. This strategy aims to reduce the exposure to credit 
default by ensuring that the department invests in secure assets and monitors all funds owed on a timely basis. Exposure to credit risk is 
monitored on an ongoing basis.

15,869

18,794

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount 
of those assets inclusive of any allowances for impairment.

The allowance for impairment reflects the occurrence of loss events.  The most readily identifiable loss event is where a debtor is overdue 
in paying a debt to the department, according to the due date (normally terms of 30 days).  Economic changes impacting the 
department's debtors, and relevant industry data, also form part of the department's risk analysis.

The department’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks – interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

There are no material events occurring after 30 June 2014 to report.

29,478

45,347

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where the department may incur financial loss as a result of another party to a financial 
instrument failing to discharge their obligation.

The carrying amount of receivables represents the maximum exposure to credit risk.

18,794

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

Impairment loss expense for the current year of the department's receivables is $1,000. This is an increase of $1,000 from 2012-13 
providing for impairment of receivables for two salary overpayments. 
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27. Financial instruments (continued)

(c)  Credit risk exposure

2014 Financial assets past due but not impaired

Receivables
Total

2013 Financial assets past due but not impaired

Receivables
Total

2014 Individually impaired financial assets

Receivables (gross)
Allowance for impairment loss
Carrying amount

Movements in Allowance for Impairment loss
Balance at 1 July
(Increase)/decrease in allowance recognised in operating result
Balance at 30 June

- 

$'000

- -

2013 

9 

Ageing of past due but not impaired as well as impaired financial assets are disclosed in the following tables:

747 

$'000

$'000

(1) (1)

(1)

$'000 $'000

47 

- 
640 

Less than 30 days
$'000

Less than 30 days

3 

More than 90 
days
$'000

47 
69 

9 
- 

- 

$'000

$'000

104 

Less than 30 days

12 

$'000

12 

-

$'000
-

- -
- -

Overdue

- 69

More than 90 
days

61–90 days

61–90 days

(4)
4

30–60 days

30–60 days

$'000

61–90 days

104 

$'000

640 

Total

Overdue

- 

More than 90 
days Total

(1)

- 

$'000

- 1

$'000$'000

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

$'000
30–60 days

Overdue

1 

Total

3 
747 

- 

2014
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27. Financial instruments (continued)

(d)  Liquidity risk

Financial liabilities
Payables
Total

Financial liabilities
Payables
Total

(e)  Market risk

(f)  Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

Financial instruments

Cash *

Financial instruments

Cash #

* Regional Flood Mitigation Program (RFMP) is an interest bearing bank account

(g)  Fair value

18

Equity
$'000

2014  interest rate risk

(28)

18

537

28

Equity
$'000

18,794

(18)

6,723

> 5 years

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

Potential impact

1,836

Profit
$'000

2,750

Equity
$'000

28 28

+ 1%- 1%Carrying 
amount

$'000

+ 1%

(18)

Equity
$'000

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis depicts the outcome on net income if interest rates would change by +/- 1% from the year-
end rates applicable to the department's financial assets and liabilities. With all other variables held constant, the department would have 
an operating result and equity increase/(decrease) of $18,000 (2012-13: $28,000).

> 5 years
2014 payable in

2,750 28

2013 interest rate risk

<1 year

(18)

(28)

18
(18)

Total

$'000

Potential impact

$'000
<1 year

$'000

Notes

537

-

$'000
1–5 years

Carrying 
amount

$'000
1,836

18

$'000

6,186
18 6,7236,186

The department does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially exposed to commodity price changes. The department is exposed 
to interest rate risk through cash deposited in interest bearing accounts. The department does not undertake any hedging in relation to 
interest risk.

-
-

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by the department. It represents the contractual maturity of financial 
liabilities, calculated based on undiscounted cash flows relating to the liabilities at reporting date.

Total

- 1%
Profit
$'000

2013 payable in

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where the department may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

$'000

Profit
$'000

(28)

# The department's bank account does not earn interest (as disclosed in note 14), therefore only the interest bearing bank accounts are 
now disclosed.
The RFMP and Indigenous Environment at Health Infrastructure Program are interest bearing bank accounts. The 2012-13 published 
financial statements note 27(f) mistakenly disclosed the department's total cash at bank of $13.95 million as being interest bearing 
accounts, rather than only $2.75 million. The prior year comparative has been corrected including disclosure of the resulting interest rate 
sensitivity impact on operating result, changed from $139 000 to $28 000. 

18,79492

The department manages liquidity risk through the use of active cash flow forecasting techniques. This aims to reduce the exposure to 
liquidity risk by ensuring the department has sufficient funds available to meet employee and supplier obligations as they fall due. This is 
achieved by ensuring that minimum levels of cash are held within the various bank accounts to match the expected duration of the various 
employee and supplier liabilities.

18,702

Notes
1–5 years

18,702

The department does not have any financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value.  The amortised cost for Loans and advances is not 
considered materially different to the fair value. Refer Note 1(i).

The fair value of trade receivables and payables is assumed to approximate the value of the original transaction, less any allowance for 
impairment.

-

$'000

The department is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of its payables.

Profit
$'000

18

$'000

(28)

92
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28. Schedule of administered items

Administered revenues
Appropriation revenue
Grants and other contributions
User charges and fees

Total administered revenues

Administered expenses
Grants and subsidies
Tranfers of Administered revenue to
government

Total administered expenses

Administered assets
Current

Cash
Total current assets

Non-Current
Land

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Administered liabilities
Current

Payables
Total administered liabilities

Administered equity
Contributed equity

Appropriated
Non-appropriated

Total contributed equity
Accumulated surplus/deficit
Reserves

Asset revaluation surpluses

Total administered equity

- -
- -

222,767 421,155 - -

222,456
311

3,633,777 756,255445,983 842,693

223,216 3,633,777

334
420,821

222,767 421,155

93 - - - 93 -

Operating Surplus/(Deficit) - - -

- 105

-

105
105

842,693 3,633,777

(1) As per Administrative Arrangements Amendment Order (No. 1) 2013 dated 4 February 2013, funding for grant payments to the Queensland 
Reconstruction Authority was transferred to the department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience effective 1 March 2013.

28(a)
28(b)
28(c)

28(d)

28(e)
93 - - - 93 -

93 105 - - 93 105

(63,192)

93

93 - 93 -

93

-
105
105

-

(63,192)

-

1,171
62,021
63,192

1,171
62,021
63,192

1,171

(63,192)

93

-

-

- -

(63,192)

-

-

-

1,171
62,021
63,192 63,192

-

105

- -
- -
- -

62,021

$'000 $'000

334
420,821

311

-

1,598,948

1,177,793

-

4,079,760

4,079,760 1,598,948

222,456

- -
- -

-
- -

- -

-

Local Government

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

421,538

$'000
20132014

$'000

Community Recovery and 
Resilience(1)

2014 2013
$'000 $'000

756,255

Notes

Total

20132014

3,633,777223,216 3,856,993 1,177,793

445,983

-

421,538

756,255

3,856,993756,255

Net administered assets -

105-

105-

93

-

-
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28. Schedule of administered items

$'000
(a)  Reconciliation of payments from consolidated fund to administered revenue

Budgeted appropriation
Treasurer's advances
Lapsed administered appropriation (1)

Administered revenue recognised in Note 28

(b) Grants and other contributions
Grants - Commonwealth
Total

(c) User charges and fees
Levy - Queensland Government departments (1)

Total
(1) Kuranda sky rail levy is collected by and then received from Queensland Rail.

(d) Grants and subsidies
Local councils
Queensland Reconstruction Authority
Grants Industry
Total

(e) Land fair value measurement
Revaluation increment -
Total

Land 

-  93 -  

$'000
-  

Level 1
$'000

- 

3,856,993

As at 30 June 2014

The following table categorises fair value measurement for administered land at level 2 in accordance with accounting policy.  The 
department does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value which the criteria for categorisation as level 1 in accordance with 
the fair value hierarchy as stated in policy note 1(m).

311 334

(1) Lapses in administered appropriation primarily relate to a revision of funding requirements under the Natural Disaster Relief and 
Recovery Arrangements.

-
3,633,777

The below information categorises fair value measurements as either level 2 or level 3  in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value 
Measurement . The department does not have any assets or liabilities measured at fair value which meet the criteria for categorisation as 
level 1, in accordance with the fair value hierarchy as stated in policy note 1(m).  

Fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable data, where it is available, and 
minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in 
level 2. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset is included in level 3.

Level 2

The department as trustee for the State of Queensland holds seven parcels of deed of grant in trust land located in the remote Northern 
Peninsula Area Regional Council. The department has constructed infrastructure assets on these land assets for use by Far North 
Queensland indigenous communities. In 2013-14 the department reassessed the previous recognition approach, transferring the land 
assets to administered and revaluing them in accordance with management’s accounting policy.

Fair value for land is determined by establishing its market value by reference to observable prices in an active market or recent market 
transactions using direct comparison to the sales history of similar properties based on location, area, access and typography.  In the 
absence of a full valuation an indexation valuation using market sales of similar type assets is performed.    

Due to the use of market observable prices from similar assets, land has been categorised as level 2 in accordance with accounting 
policies. 

93 

Level 3

191

334

222,456

93

1,177,793

311

420,821

$'000

93

222,456 420,821

421,347223,216

$'000

-

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

4,339,224

Total 

197,634

(795,926)
1,776,085

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

Land

(482,231)

2013

1,177,793

3,856,993

2014

756,255
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28. Schedule of administered items (continued)

(f)  Financial instruments
Categorisation of administered financial instruments
The department has the following categories of administered financial assets and financial liabilities:

Category
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Total

Financial liabilities
Payables measured at amortised cost
Total

105 
105               

105

$'000 

-

Notes $'000 

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2013-14

Refer to note 27 for disclosures relating to risks and fair value. The department considers disclosure of additional information relating to 
ageing and maturity of the administered financial instruments is not materially significant.

-

-28

105               

2013 

-

2014 

28
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Appendix 1 Organisational chart 
Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience (as at 30 June 2014) 
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Appendix 2 Schedule of statutory 
authorities 

Queensland Reconstruction Authority 
The Queensland Reconstruction Authority (QRA) was established under the Queensland 
Reconstruction Authority Act 2011 following unprecedented natural disasters that struck 
Queensland during the summer of 2010-11.   

Following natural disasters in January 2013, the Queensland Reconstruction Authority 
Amendment Act 2013 extended QRA’s mandate until June 2015. 

QRA’s role encompasses managing and coordinating the Government’s program of 
infrastructure renewal across communities affected by natural disasters. 

QRA works with state and local government partners to deliver value for money, and best 
practice expenditure and acquittal of public reconstruction funds. 

QRA’s strategic objectives are: 

 deliver best practice expenditure of public reconstruction funds 

 build a resilient Queensland and support resilient Queenslanders. 

The 2013-14 annual report published by QRA provides full financial reporting for the 
2013-14 financial year. The department administered funding to QRA of $3.6 billion in 
2013-14.  
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Appendix 3 Compliance checklist 
Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual report 

reference 

Letter of compliance A letter of compliance 
from the accountable 
officer or statutory 
body to the relevant 
Minister 

ARRs – section 8 Letter of compliance 

Accessibility Table of contents 

Glossary 

ARRs – section 10.1 Contents 

Glossary 

Public availability ARRs – section 10.2 Imprint page 

Interpreter service 
statement 

Queensland 
Government Language 
Services Policy 

ARRs – section 10.3 

Imprint page 

Copyright notice Copyright Act 1968 

ARRs - section 10.4 

Imprint page 

Information licensing Queensland 
Government Enterprise 
Architecture-
Information licensing 

ARRs – section 10.5 

Imprint page 

General information Introductory 
information 

ARRs – section 11.1 Director-General’s 
foreword 

Agency role and 
function 

ARRs – section 11.2 About the department  

Legislation obligations 

Operating 
environment 

ARRs – section 11.3 Our operating 
environment 

Machinery of 
Government 

ARRs – section 11.4 Financial Summary 

Non-financial 
performance 

Government objectives 
for the community 

ARRs – section 12.1 Realising outcomes for 
local government and 
the community 
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual report 
reference 

Other whole-of-
government 
plans/specific 
initiatives 

ARRs – section 12.2 Partners in 
Government 

Agency objectives and 
performance indicators 

ARRs – section 12.3 Achieving objectives 
through strategic 
planning 

Agency service areas, 
service standards and 
other measures 

ARRs – section 12.4 Output performance 

Financial performance Summary of financial 
performance 

ARRs – section 13.1 Summary of financial 
performance 

Governance – 
management and 
structure 

Organisational 
structure 

ARRs – section 14.1 Organisational 
structure 

Executive 
management 

ARRs – section 14.2 Executive leadership 
team 

Related entities ARRS – section 14.3 Related entities and 
government bodies 

Government bodies ARRs – section 14.4 Related entities and 
government bodies 

Public Sector Ethics 
Act 1994 

Public Sector Ethics 
Act 1994 (section 23 
and Schedule) 

ARRs – section 14.5 

Ethics and integrity 

Governance – risk 
management and 
accountability 

Risk management ARRs – section 15.1 Risk management 

External security ARRs – section 15.2 External scrutiny 

Audit committee ARRs – section 15.3 Audit Committee 

Internal Audit ARRs – section 15.4 Internal Audit 

Public Sector Renewal  ARRS – section 15.5 Renewal program 

Information systems 
and record keeping 

ARRs – section 15.6 Information systems 
and record keeping 
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Summary of requirement Basis for requirement Annual report 
reference 

Governance – human 
resources 

Workforce planning, 
attraction and 
retention, and 
performance 

ARRs – section 16.1 Our workforce 

Workforce profile 

Workforce planning 

Performance 
management 

Early retirement, 
redundancy and 
retrenchment 

Directive No. 11/12 
Early Retirement, 
Redundancy and 
Retrenchment 

ARRs – section 16.2 

Early retirement, 
redundancy and 
retrenchment 

Open Data Open Data ARRs – section 17 Imprint page 

Financial Statements Certification of 
financial statements 

FAA – section 62 

FPMS – sections 42, 
43 and 50 

ARRs – section 18.2 

Financial statements 

Independent Auditor’s 
Report 

FAA – section 62 

FPMS – section 50 

ARRs – section 18.2 

Financial statements 

Remuneration 
disclosures 

Financial Reporting 
Requirements for 
Queensland 
Government Agencies 

ARRs – section 18.3 

Financial statements 
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Abbreviations 
Abbreviation Description 

ARMC Audit and Risk Management Committee 

ARRs Annual reporting requirements for Queensland Government agencies 

CCC Crime and Corruption Commission 

CEO Chief Executive Officer 

CLF Capability and Leadership Framework 

DSDIP Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning 

eDRMS Electronic document records management system 

ELT Executive Leadership Team 

FAG Financial Assistance Grant 

ICT Information and Communication Technology 

ISC Information Steering Committee 

LGAQ Local Government Association of Queensland 

QAO Queensland Audit Office 

QRA Queensland Reconstruction Authority 

SDS Service Delivery Standards 

SLA Service Level Agreement 

WHSC Work Health Safety Committee 
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Annual Report 2013-14 
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Glossary 
Term Description 

administrative arrangements Administrative Arrangements orders set out the principle 
responsibilities of government ministers and their portfolios. 

all hazards approach An all hazards approach refers to ensuring disaster planning 
and preparations encompass all potential natural disasters, 
including flooding and fire. 

community infrastructure Community infrastructure can include not only tangible 
infrastructure built for the use of a community, such as local 
parks and roads, but also intangible infrastructure such as 
community plans and networks. 

de-amalgamation The de-amalgamation process enables approved local 
government areas with community support for 
de-amalgamation to become independent from larger regional 
councils into which they were previously amalgamated.  

financial sustainability A local government is financially sustainable if the local 
government is able to maintain its financial capital and 
infrastructure capital over the long-term.  

local laws The Local Government Act 2009 and the City of Brisbane Act 
2010 empower local governments to make local laws that are 
suitable to their particular needs and resources and that 
achieve the purposes of the principles of government.  

machinery-of-government 
changes 

The term ‘machinery-of-government changes’ describes 
organisational or functional change affecting the Queensland 
Government. This can include decisions to abolish or create a 
department or agency or to move functions or responsibilities 
between departments or agencies.  

whole-of-government Whole-of-Government is a term used to refer to all Queensland 
Government departments and agencies.  
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Contacts 
Department of Local Government, Community Recovery and Resilience 

Head Office 

Levels 17 and 18, 41 George Street, Brisbane 
PO Box 15009 
City East Qld 4002 
Tel 13 QGOV (13 7468) 
info@dlgcrr.qld.gov.au 

Southern Region - Offices 

Brisbane Office 

Level 17, 41 George Street, Brisbane 
PO Box 15009, City East Qld 4002 
Tel +61 7 3452 6762 

Bundaberg Office 

Level 1, 7 Takalvan Street, Bundaberg 
PO Box 979, Bundaberg Qld 4670 
Tel +61 7 4331 5611 

Maryborough Office 

319-325 Kent Street, Maryborough 
PO Box 73, Maryborough Qld 4650 
Tel +61 7 4122 0410 

Rockhampton Office 

Level 3, 130 Victoria Parade, Rockhampton 
PO Box 113, Rockhampton Qld 4700 
Tel +61 7 4924 2907 

Sunshine Coast Office 

Level 8, Mike Ahern Government Office 
Building, 12 First Avenue, Maroochydore 
PO Box 1129, Maroochydore Qld 4558 
Tel +61 7 5352 9712 

Toowoomba Office 

Ground Floor West Side Entrance 
128 Margaret Street, Toowoomba 
PO Box 825, Toowoomba Qld 4350 
Tel +61 7 4616 1982 

Northern Region - Offices 

Cairns Office 

Level 11, Cairns Corporate Tower 
15 Lake Street, Cairns 
PO Box 3038, Cairns Qld 4870 
Tel +61 7 4037 3400 

Townsville Office 

Level 5, Central Plaza 
370 Flinders Street, Townsville Qld 4810 
Tel +61 7 4758 3421 
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